
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Lamar Consolidated Independent School District  

Board of Trustees 

Tuesday, July 17, 2012 

7:00 PM  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Michael Richard, President  Karen Mendoza, Vice President  Julie Thompson, Secretary 

Dar Hakimzadeh  Sam Hopkins  Frank Torres  Rhonda Zacharias 



LAMAR CISD BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

BRAZOS CROSSING ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

3911 AVENUE I, ROSENBERG, TEXAS 

JULY 17, 2012 

7:00 PM 

 

AGENDA 

 

1. Call to order and establishment of a quorum  

2. Opening of meeting  

3. Recognitions/awards  

A. Texas State Solo & Ensemble Contest UIL Outstanding Performers  

4. Audience to patrons  

5. Approval of minutes  

A. June 19, 2012 Regular Board Meeting 6 

6. Board members reports  

A. Meetings and events  

7. Superintendent reports  

A. Meetings and events  

B. Information for immediate attention  

C. Introductions  

8. Public Hearing on Internet Safety Policy  

9. ACTION ITEMS  

A. Goal:  Instructional  

1. Consider approval of Interagency Program Agreement between Lamar 

CISD and the Behavior Treatment and Training Center (BTTC), Texana 

Center 

13 

2. Consider approval of Interagency Program Agreement between Lamar 

CISD and Richmond State Supported Living Center (RSSLC) 

21 

3. Consider approval of secondary curriculum at-a-glances for Career and 

Technical Education 

30 

4. Consider approval to purchase resource for elementary science curriculum 31 

B. Goal: Planning  

1. Consider ratification of Financial and Investment Reports 32 

2. Consider approval of budget amendment requests 36 

3. Budget Update  

a. 2012 - 2013 Budget Update 38 

b. Consider approval of date for public meeting to discuss budget and 

proposed tax rate 

39 

c. Consider approval of proposed tax rate that will be published in the 40 



notice for the public meeting 

4. Consider approval of general merchandise vendors 41 

5. Consider approval of classroom instructional materials and supplies 43 

6. Consider approval of proposal for portable building relocation and setup 45 

7. Consider approval of purchase of Technology Vehicles 48 

8. Consider approval of operation services for district water and sewer 

treatment facilities 

50 

9. Consider approval of donations to the district, including, but not limited to: 57 

a. Austin Elementary School  

b. Dickinson Elementary School  

c. Smith Elementary School  

10. Consider approval of naming new school 58 

11. Consider approval of TEA Consortium Commitment 59 

12. Consider approval of Board Policies 60 

a. Localized Policy Manual Update 93 61 

b. Localized Policy Manual Update 94 108 

13. Consider approval of memorandum of understanding with William Smith 

Sr., Tri-County Child Development Council, Inc. and Fort Bend County 

122 

14. Consider approval of agreement for Lamar CISD worker's compensation 

third party administration program 

127 

15. Consider approval of the worker's compensation excess carrier for Lamar 

CISD 

129 

16. Consider approval of architect contract for the new Natatorium 131 

17. Consider approval of architect contract for the new agriculture facility 132 

18. Consider approval of wastewater contract between Lamar CISD and Fort 

Bend County MUD #146 

133 

19. Consider approval of utility easement at Joe Hubenak Elementary School 176 

10. INFORMATION ITEMS  

A. Goal:  Instructional  

1. Freezing of new Intra-District/Inter-District transfer requests to Bowie, 

Ray, and Travis Elementary Schools 

184 

B. Goal: Planning  

1. 2013 Graduation 185 

2. Board Policies for First Reading 186 

3. Tax Collection Report 215 

4. Payments for Construction Projects 221 

5. Region 4 Maintenance and Operations Update 223 

6. Bond Update 225 

11. CLOSED SESSION  



A. Adjournment to closed session pursuant to Texas Government Code Sections 

551.071, 551.072, 551.074, and 551.082, the Open Meetings Act, for the 

following purposes: (Time___________________) 

 

1. Section 551.074 - For the purpose of considering the appointment, 

employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a 

public officer or employee or to hear complaints or charges against a public 

officer or employee. 

228 

a. Approval of personnel recommendations or employment of professional 

personnel 

229 

b. Employment of professional personnel (Information) 232 

c. Employee resignations and retirements 243 

d. Consider employment of Principal for Huggins Elementary School 246 

e. Consider employment of Director of Student Support Services 248 

2. Section 551.072 - For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, 

lease or value of real property 

 

a. Land acquisition  

3. Section 551.071 - To meet with the District's attorney to discuss matters in 

which the duty of the attorney to the District under the Texas Disciplinary 

Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts 

with the Open Meetings Act, including the grievance/complaint hearing. 

 

a. Any item listed on the agenda  

b. Discuss pending, threatened, or potential litigation, including school 

finance litigation 

 

c. Discussion with legal counsel regarding redistricting process  

 

 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION 

 

 Action on Closed Session Items 

 Future Agenda Items 

 

ADJOURNMENT: (Time                             ) 

 

If during the course of the meeting covered by this notice, the Board should determine that a closed 

session of the Board should be held or is required in relation to an item noticed in this meeting, then such 

closed session as authorized by Section 551.001 et seq. of the Texas Government Code (the Open 

Meetings Act) will be held by the Board at that date, hour or place given in this notice or as soon after the 

commencement of the meeting covered by this notice as the Board may conveniently meet in such closed 

session concerning any and all subjects and for any and all purposes permitted by Section 551.071-

551.084, inclusive, of the Open Meetings Act, including, but not limited to:  

 

Section 551.084 - For the purpose of excluding witness or witnesses from a hearing during 

examination of another witness. 

 

Section 551.071 - For the purpose of a private consultation with the Board's attorney on any or all 

subjects or matters authorized by law. 

 





 
 

Regular Meeting 
 

Be It Remembered 
 
 

The State of Texas      §  
County of Fort Bend      § 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District § 
 
Notice of Regular Meeting Held 
 
On this the 19th day of June 2012, the Board of Trustees of the Lamar Consolidated Independent 
School District of Fort Bend County, Texas met in Regular Session in Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, 
Texas. 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM 
 
This meeting was duly called to order by the President of the Board of Trustees, Michael Richard, at 
7:00 p.m. 
 
 
Members Present: 
 
Michael Richard  President 
Karen Mendoza  Vice President 
Julie Thompson  Secretary 
Dar Hakimzadeh  Member 
Sam Hopkins   Member 
Rhonda Zacharias  Member 
 
 
Members Absent: 
 
Frank Torres   Member 
 
 
Others Present: 
 
Thomas Randle  Superintendent 
Kevin McKeever  Administrator for Operations 
Jill Ludwig   Chief Financial Officer 
Laura Lyons   Executive Director of Elementary Education 
Walter Bevers   Executive Director of Secondary Education 
Kathleen Bowen  Executive Director of Human Resources  
Mike Rockwood  Executive Director of Community Relations 
David Jacobson  Chief Technology Information Officer 
Jeff Rogers   Attorney 
 
 
BUSINESS TRANSACTED  
 
Business properly coming before the Board was transacted as follows: to witness— 
 

6



Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of June 19, 2012 – page 14 
 
 
2.OPENING OF MEETING 
 

The prayer was led by Dr. Bevers and the pledge of allegiance was recited. 
 

 
3. RECOGNITIONS/AWARDS 
 

a. National DECA Qualifiers 
 

National DECA qualifiers recognized were as follows: 
 
Lamar Consolidated High School students:  Jermisha Sanford, Justice Washington, 
Johnathan Zemene, Hina Afsar, and Tazeem Gulamhusein 
 
Foster High School students:  Nicholas Liberato, Emilio Garcia, and Cesar Dominguez 
 
b. Technology Student Association National Qualifiers 
 
Technology Student Association (TSA) national qualifiers recognized were Carl Bennett, 
Chris Lai, Drew Heugel, Erick Chow, Jhangir Awan, Jolea Nealy, Kevin Esswein, Rachel 
Tankersley, and Thomas Reynolds. 
 
c. State Skills Competition Qualifiers 
 
Terry High School students recognized were Alex Organista, Carlos Ramirez, Edwin 
Camacho, Rigoberto Lopez, and Danielle Donnelly. 
 
Lamar Consolidated High School students recognized were Nancy Macias, Maria Hinjosa, 
Gabrielle Gonzales, Shakia Como, Priscilla Escobar, Jessica Obi, Raul Gallalrdo, Erinn 
Garcia, Misael Rubio, Chiamaka Ujari, Chioma Ujari, Kaylan Rogers, Linda Efejuku, Karen 
Omay, Chika Iguh, Ashtin Calvin, and Tracy Nwanne. 

 
4. AUDIENCE TO PATRONS 
 

None 
 
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MAY 15, 2012 SPECIAL BOARD MEETING AND MAY 17, 

2012 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 
It was moved by Ms. Thompson and seconded by Ms. Zacharias that the Board of Trustees 
approve the minutes of May 15, 2012 Special Board Meeting and May 17, 2012 Regular  
Board Meeting.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 
6. BOARD MEMBERS REPORTS 
 

 Meetings and Events 

Ms. Zacharias reported that the Technology Committee met today. She 
commended the technology group for streaming graduation. It went very well. 
 
Mr. Hopkins reported on the Facilities Committee meeting.  Elementary #22, 
Polly Ryon Middle School and George Ranch High School shell space build-
out is underway and on schedule. 
 

7



Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of June 19, 2012 – page 15 
 
 

President Richard reported that Board members had attended the TASB 
Summer Leadership Institute in San Antonio and reported it was an excellent 
meeting. 

 
 
7. SUPERINTENDENT REPORTS 

 
 Meetings and Events 

 Information for Immediate Attention 

 Introductions 

Dr. Bowen introduced new administrators in the district: 
 
 Michelle Pena-Amos, After-School Program Coordinator 
 Deborah Bible, Assistant Principal, George Ranch High School 
 Fred Black, Assistant Principal, George Ranch High School 

 
 
AGENDA ITEMS FOR CONSENT OF APPROVAL: 8. A-3—8.A-6, 8.A-9—8. A-10 
 
It was moved by Mr. Hopkins and seconded by Mr. Hakimzadeh that the Board of Trustees approve 
these action items as presented.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
8. A GOAL:  PLANNING 
 
8. A-3  Ratification of Quarterly Investment Report 
 

ratified the quarterly investment report as submitted for the quarter ending May 31, 
2012.  (See inserted pages 15-A—15-F.) 

 
8. A-4  Consider Ratification of Financial and Investment Reports 
 
  ratified the financial and investment reports as presented. 
 
8. A-5  Approval of Budget Amendment Requests 
 

approved budget amendment requests as attached.  (See inserted page 15-G.) 
 
8. A-6  Approval of Donations to the District, including, but not limited to: 

 
a. Campbell Elementary 
b. Hutchison Elementary 
c. Velasquez Elementary 
d. Hubenak Elementary 
 
approved donations to the district. 

 
8. A-9  Approval of Deductive Change Order #1 and Final Payment for the Paving  

Improvement Projects 
 
approved the Deductive Change Order #1 in the amount of $2,950.36 and final 
payment of $32,084.48 to AAA Asphalt Paving for the paving improvement projects at 
Bowie Elementary, Smith Elementary, and George Ranch High schools. 

8



 
 
Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of June 19, 2012 – page 16 
 
 
8. A-10 Approval of Copier Contract 
 

approved a 36-month lease to OCE’ Document Printing Systems for district-wide 
copiers. 

 
8. A  GOAL:  PLANNING 
 
8. A-1  Consider Designation of Texas Association of School Boards Delegate and 

Alternate to the 2012 Texas Association of School Boards (TASB) Fall Con-
vention 
 
It was moved by Ms. Zacharias and seconded by Mr. Hopkins that the Board of 
Trustees approve Karen Mendoza as the delegate to the 2012 Texas Association of 
School Board fall convention.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
It was moved by Ms. Thompson and seconded by Mr. Hakimzadeh that the Board of 
Trustees approve Ms. Zacharias as the alternate to the 2012 Texas Association of 
School Board fall convention.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 
8. A-2  Approval of Nomination of Candidate for Position on the Texas Association of 

School Boards (TASB) Board of Directors 
 
No nominations. 

 
8. A-7  Approval of Names for New Elementary Schools, High School #5, and Junior  

High #5 
 
It was moved by Ms. Zacharias and seconded by Ms. Mendoza that the Board of 
Trustees approve the name Churchill Fulshear, Jr. as the name for High School #5.  
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
It was moved by Ms. Zacharias and seconded by Mr. Hopkins that the Board of 
Trustees approve the name of Dean Leaman as the name for Junior High School #5.  
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
It was moved by Mr. Hopkins and seconded by Ms. Mendoza that the Board of 
Trustees approve the name of Judge James C. Adolphus as the name for Elementary 
#22.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
It was moved by Ms. Mendoza and seconded by Mr. Hopkins that the Board of 
Trustees approve the name of John Arredondo as the name for Elementary #23.  The 
motion carried unanimously. 

 
8. A-8  Discussion of Wine and  Beer Permit at Convenience Store Near School District 

Property 
 
Board members discussed this item and no one had any opposition.  Mr. Richard 
abstained from any comment.  (Store located at Reading Road and FM 2218 in 
Rosenberg, Texas.) 

 
 

9



 
Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of June 19, 2012 – page 17 
 
 
8. B  GOAL:  TECHNOLOGY 
 
8. B-1  Approval to Purchase a Firewall and Internet Content Filter 
 

It was moved by Mr. Hopkins and seconded by Mr. Hakimzadeh that the Board of 
Trustees approve the purchase of a firewall and content filter from Micro Integration.  
The motion carried unanimously. 

 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
9. A  GOAL:  INSTRUCTIONAL 
 
9. A-1  Quarterly Academic Update 
 

Instructional staff gave a quarterly academic update to keep the focus of the Board, 
administration, and the district on student performance.  
 

9. A-2  Texas Assessment of Knowledge and Skills (TAKS) Results, Spring 2012 
 
  An update on TAKS results for Spring 2012 was shared. 
 
9. A-3  State of Texas Assessments of Academic Readiness – End of Course 

(STAAR—EOC) Results, Spring 2012 
 
Information was shared on STARR--EOC results and Data Driven Decision Process. 

 
 
9. B  GOAL:  PLANNING 
 
9. B-1  Appointment of Board Committees 
 

      2011—2012    2012—2013  
STANDING COMMITTEES 
 
POLICY REVIEW COMMITTEE  Jesse Torres   Frank Torres 
      Karen Mendoza  Karen Mendoza 
      Rhonda Zacharias  Rhonda Zacharias 

 
FINANCIAL AUDIT COMMITTEE  Michael Richard  Michael Richard 

       Sam Hopkins   Sam Hopkins 
       Karen Mendoza  Karen Mendoza 
 

FACILITIES COMMITTEE   Sam Hopkins   Sam Hopkins 
      Michael Richard  Michael Richard 
      Julie Thompson  Julie Thompson 

 
ATTENDANCE BOUNDARY   Julie Thompson  Julie Thompson 
COMMITTEE     Dar Hakimzadeh  Dar Hakimzadeh 

       Jesse Torres   Frank Torres 
 
 

10



Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of June 19, 2012 – page 18 
 
 

2011—2012    2012—2013  
STANDING COMMITTEES 
 
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY  Rhonda Zacharias  Rhonda Zacharias 

 COMMITTEE     Jack Christiana **  Jack Christiana ** 
       Dar Hakimzadeh  Dar Hakimzadeh 
 
 GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS   Karen Mendoza  Karen Mendoza 
 COMMITTEE     Sam Hopkins   Sam Hopkins 
       Michael Richard  Michael Richard 

** Advisory Member 
 
9. B-2  Budget Workshop 
 

The Budget Workshop was presented by Jill Ludwig, Chief Financial Officer, with the 
following agenda: 
 

 •   2012—2013 General Fund Revenue and Expenditure 
      Budget Projections 

--  Property Tax Revenue 
 --   Changes to Preliminary Values 

    --  Updated Totals 
   •    Debt Service Fund Budget Update 
   •    Child Nutrition Fund Budget 
 
9. B-3  Tax Collection Report 
 
9. B-4  Energy Management Quarterly Report 
 
9. B-5  Payments for Construction Projects 
 
9. B-6  Region 4 Maintenance and Operations Update 
 
9. B-7  Bond Update 
 
9. B-8  Multi-year Contracts for Insurance Products 
 
9. B-9  Multi-year Contracts for Student and Athletic Insurance Coverage 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION PURSUANT TO TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE 
SECTIONS 551.071, 551.072, 551.074, AND 551.082, THE OPEN MEETINGS ACT, FOR THE 
FOLLOWING PURPOSES: 
 

1. Section 551.074 – For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, 
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or 
to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee. 

a. Approval of personnel recommendations or employment of professional personnel 
b. Employment of professional personnel (Information) 
c. Employee resignations and retirements 
d. Consider employment of Principal for Wessendorff Middle School 

 
 

11



Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of June 19, 2012 – page 19 
 
 

2. Section 551.072 – For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or value 
of real property. 

a. Land acquisition 
 

3. Section 551.071 – To meet with the District’s attorney to discuss matters in  which the 
duty of the attorney to the District under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional 
Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with the Open Meetings Act, including 
the grievance/complaint hearing. 

a. Any item listed on the agenda. 
b. Discuss pending, threatened, or potential litigation, including school finance 

litigation 
c. Discussion with legal counsel regarding redistricting process 

 
The Board adjourned to Closed Session at 8:20 p.m. for the purposes listed above. 
 
 
RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION – ACTION ON CLOSED SESSION 
 
The Board reconvened in Open Session at 8:45 p.m. 
 
 
EMPLOYMENT OF PERSONNEL 
 
Employed 
 
It was moved by Ms. Mendoza and seconded by Mr. Hopkins that the Board of Trustees approve 
personnel as presented.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
Griffin, Krystina  7/25/2012  504/Dyslexia Facilitator Brazos Crossing 
 
 
Employment of Principal for Wessendorff Middle School 
 
It was moved by Ms. Mendoza and seconded by Mr. Hakimzadeh that the Board of Trustees 
approve the recommendation of Margaret Patton for principal of Wessendorff Middle School.  The 
motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:47 p.m. 
 
 
LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
Signed: 
 
 
 
              
Michael Richard     Julie Thompson 
President of the Board of Trustees   Secretary of the Board of Trustees 

12



CONSIDER APPROVAL OF INTERAGENCY PROGRAM AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT AND THE 

BEHAVIOR TREATMENT AND TRAINING CENTER (BTTC), TEXANA CENTER 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  

 
That the Board approve the Interagency Program Agreement between Lamar CISD and 
the Behavior Treatment and Training Center (BTTC), Texana Center for the 2012-2013 
school year. 

 

 

IMPACT/RATIONALE: 

 
Lamar CISD is required to educate all school age children who reside within district 
boundaries, regardless of where the parent or guardian resides, and Lamar CISD has 
been educating residents residing at BTTC since the facility opened. In the spring of 
2001, the program and fiscal responsibility for the BTTC shifted from the Richmond 
State School to Texana, Mental Health and Retardation Authority. Education is being 
provided through the LCISD Community Center staff. State foundation special 
education contact hours and federal special education funds support the services 
provided at the BTTC. 
 
 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

 
The Agreement with Texana Center governs the responsibilities of both BTTC and 
Lamar CISD staff. The current agreement is being recommended to govern 
responsibilities for the 2012-2013 school year and provides a system for LCISD/BTTC 
teachers to assist other district teachers in the areas of autism and use of behavioral 
analysis in instruction. Severely retarded and behaviorally disturbed children, usually 
10-12 in number, reside at BTTC with an average length of stay between 3 and 6 
months.  Due to the severity of needs demonstrated by the students, services are 
provided to these students at the BTTC. 
 
The agreement is attached for Board review. 

 
 

Submitted by: Dr. Megan Whitley, Director of Special Education    
                       Laura Lyons, Executive Director of Elementary Education    
 
  
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 
 
 

9.A.#1. – INSTRUCTIONAL 

BOARD REPORT 

JULY 17, 2012 

13



Page 1 of 7 

  

 INTERAGENCY PROGRAM AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

 LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT AND 

 THE BEHAVIOR TREATMENT AND TRAINING CENTER (BTTC), 

TEXANA CENTER 

 

 

THIS AGREEMENT is made at the request of the Lamar Consolidated Independent School District 
through its Board of Trustees hereinafter referred to as the "District”, and The Behavior Treatment 
and Training Center (BTTC), Texana Center, hereinafter referred to as "BTTC/Texana". 
 

WHEREAS, the District and BTTC/Texana recognizes the desirability of providing education and 
treatment programs in the least restrictive environment to school age youth residing at 
BTTC/Texana; and  
 

WHEREAS, the District and the BTTC/Texana mutually recognize that the Memorandum of 
Agreement between the Texas Department of Mental Health and Mental Retardation and the Texas 
Education agency dated October 9, 1985 designates the District, at the present time, the appropriate 
source to supply education to these students; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of these premises and in future consideration of 
the matters hereinafter set forth, the District and BTTC/Texana to hereby stipulate and agree as 
follows: 
 

 I. 

 

 ELIGIBILITY 

 
To be eligible for special education services under this agreement, a student must be identified as 
disabled according to the criteria developed by the Texas Education Agency and meet other state 
requirements for attendance and service provisions.  Each eligible student must be enrolled in the 
District and must have an Individual Education Plan (IEP) designated by the Admission Review and 
Dismissal/Individual Education Plan (ARD/IEP) committee before educational services are provided. 
 
 

 II. 

 

 RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BTTC/TEXANA 

 

 

BTTC/Texana agrees to: 
 
A. Make available to the District all referral and assessment information: current medical 

diagnosis and conditions, including immunizations and potential carrier status for any 
communicable disease; proof of birth; and copies of each student's current Individual 
Program Plan (IPP).  Access to client records (POR) will be provided for information 
necessary to facilitate District instructional services.  

 
 
 

14



Page 2 of 7 

  

 The Individual Program Plan (IPP) is generally defined to include the following  
 services based on need: 

1. Dental services 
2. Training and habilitation services 
3. Food and nutrition services 
4. Medical services 
5. Nursing services 
6. Pharmacy services 
7. Physical and occupational services 
8. Psychological services 
9. Recreation services 
10. Social services 
11. Speech pathology and audiological services 
12. Prior educational services 

 
B. Designate staff member(s) to serve as liaisons for the following activities: 
 

1. Attend the ARD/IEP Committee meetings. 
2. Resolve issues that arise in the area of student need. 
3. Resolve issues that arise in the areas of general Texana and District services. 
4. BTTC Management and LCISD Management shall discuss new District staff 

members regarding assignment to BTTC. 
 
C. Provide care, active treatment, and other customary services, as deemed appropriate by the 

BTTC/Texana's Interdisciplinary Team and each student's Individual Program Plan (IPP), to 
support a student's entry and ongoing participation in an educational program by the District. 

 
D. Provide and maintain appropriate instructional space for students the ARD determines need 

to be instructed at the Behavior Treatment and Training Center, including access to students 
as appropriate on scheduled class days. 

 
1. Provide classroom space and furniture for instruction by District staff at the BTTC, 

at no cost to the District for the duration of the instructional schedule designated 
in the student's IEP. 

2. When instructional space must be shared by BTTC/Texana and District 
personnel, provide locked cabinets for the storage of District instructional 
materials and equipment. 

3. Provide needed housekeeping/janitorial services in District class space at the 
BTTC at the end of each instructional day and on an emergency basis. 

4. Deliver any needed linen to instructional settings at BTTC/Texana. 
 
 
E. Coordinate services in the BTTC/Texana's Individual Program Plan (IPP) of active treatment 

with services provided in accordance with the Individual Education Plan (IEP). 
 
F. Communicate necessary information regarding client care and treatment daily or as needed 

to District staff. 
 
 

15



Page 3 of 7 

  

G. Provide transportation of students to and from the classroom and the student's living 
quarters.  

 
H. Continue to provide services needed for care, treatment, and habilitation as determined 

by the IPP and which has been provided prior to the provision of education services by 
the District. 

 
I. Provide nursing services for those students that the ARD determines need instruction at 

the BTTC/Texana campus.  For students that the ARD determines need instruction off 
campus in District classes, provide the following services: 

 
1. Follow the health policy of the District and BTTC/Texana when illness or 

infectious/communicable diseases occur. 
2. Provide prescribed medication with physician's orders and recommendations for 

any special nursing services the student may need to appropriate District nurse. 
 
J. Provide meals during the instructional day for those students the ARD determines need  
        to be served by the District at BTTC/Texana. 
 
K. Collaborate with the District in the Teacher Training Partnership to increase teacher skills 

in serving students with severe behavior disabilities. 
 
L. Adhere to the District student attendance policies and make every effort to avoid elective 

absences during school hours/days.  Any situation that precludes educational services as 
scheduled will be resolved by the BTTC Manager and the designee of the Director of Special 
Programs and Projects at the District. 

 
M. Follow all federal and state requirements governing the development and implementation 

of the IPP, Texana policy, and mutually agreed upon guideline for the implementation of 
this Agreement. 

 

 III. 

 

 RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DISTRICT 

 
A. Make available to BTTC/Texana, educational assessments and updates, provide access to 

student records for information necessary to facilitate BTTC/Texana’s care, treatment and 
habilitation; and provide copies of the current/revised IEP.  Utilize, to the maximum extent 
possible, referral and assessment information from BTTC/Texana's records in order to avoid 
unnecessary duplication of services. 

 
B. Designate staff member(s) to serve as liaisons for the following activities: 

1. Attend the IPP interdisciplinary team meetings as needed. 
2. Resolve issues that arise in areas of student needs. 
3. Resolve issues that arise in areas of District and Texana services. 
4. BTTC Management and LCISD Management shall discuss new District staff 

members regarding assignment to BTTC. 
 

 

16



Page 4 of 7 

  

C. Provide and/or make available instructional services, including needed speech and 
language therapy, to BTTC residents as determined by the ARD/IEP Committee in 
accordance with State Board of Education Rules for Special Education and federal 
regulations.  Provide instructional staff assigned to the BTTC students with Crisis Prevention 
Institute training, which includes methods and strategies for appropriate intervention with 
aggressive students. To the extent possible minimize disruptions in assignment of 
instructional staff in order to provide a therapeutic environment for autistic children with 
problem behaviors. 

 
D. Make available a six-hour instructional day in the least restrictive environment with any 

variation determined by the ARD/IEP Committee.  Utilize a variety of instructional settings to 
meet student needs including District classes off the BTTC campus, classes on BTTC 
campus.  Resolve conflicts between ARD/IEP and IDT Committee decisions through a joint 
committee meeting. 

 
E. Coordinate services of the District's Individual Education Plan (IEP) of active treatment. 
 
F. Communicate necessary information regarding student education daily or as needed to 

Texana staff. 
 
G. Provide the related services that the ARD deems necessary for the provision of 

appropriate instructional services.  Services include but are not limited to direct and/or 
consultative services in the areas listed below: 

 
1. Speech and Language therapy 
2. Occupational therapy 
3. Physical therapy 
4. Adaptive equipment 
5. Psychological services 
6. Diagnostic services 
7. Orientation and Mobility training 
8. Special transportation for District students as appropriate 
9. Counseling 

 
H. Collaborate with BTTC in the Teacher Training Partnership to increase teacher skills in 
 serving students with severe behavioral disabilities. 
  
I. Inform BTTC/Texana regarding Lamar Consolidated Independent School District attendance 
 policies.  Minimize removal from instruction, enacting emergency removal only for health and 
 safety reasons. 
 
J.   Follow all federal and state requirements governing the development and implementation of 
 the IEP, Lamar Consolidated Independent School District policy, and mutually agreed upon 
 guidelines for the implementation of this agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 

17



Page 5 of 7 

  

 IV. 

 

 CONSULTATION BETWEEN PARTIES 

 
It is understood that after the execution of the agreement, representatives of the District and 
representatives of BTTC/Texana will meet to formulate guidelines in furtherance of the agreement. 
These mutually agreed upon guidelines will specify the procedures to be used to fully implement this 
Agreement. 

V. 

 

 LIMITATIONS 

 
It is understood that the educational program, which is the subject of this agreement, will be offered 
in accordance with each student's IEP and the District's school calendar designating holidays.  Both 
parties concur that the District agrees to provide education services only under the terms in this 
agreement.  The District assumes no responsibility for students upon dismissal from residence at 
BTTC unless the student is or becomes a resident of the District.  The terms of this Agreement 
constitute the total agreement between the District and BTTC/Texana. 
 

 VI. 

 

 TERM 

 
This Agreement shall be effective beginning August 2012, upon execution by both parties, and shall 
continue in full force and effect through June 2013.  If the agreement made in this Agreement is to 
be continued beyond June 2013, a new Agreement will be executed. 
 

 VII. 

 

 PROVISION FOR OTHER AGREEMENTS 

 
It is recognized that either party may enter into other agreements and affiliations so long as 
these are not inconsistent with the terms and provisions of this Agreement. 
 

 VIII. 

 

 AMENDMENTS 

 
This Agreement may be amended only by written instrument duly executed by both parties and 
attached to this Agreement. 
 

IX. 

 

 BINDING ON SUCCESSORS 

 
This Agreement shall bind and benefit the respective parties and their legal successors, but shall not 
otherwise be assignable, in whole or in part, by either party without first obtaining the written consent 
of the other party. 

 X. 

18



Page 6 of 7 

  

 

 LEGALITY 

 
This Agreement shall be subject to all present and future valid laws, orders, rules, and regulations of 
The United States of America, The State of Texas, and other regulatory bodies thereof having 
jurisdiction. 

 

 XI. 

 

 CONFIDENTIALITY 

 
The District and BTTC/Texana offer mutual assurance that all matters relative to the sharing of 
information will be treated in a confidential manner in accordance with all applicable State and 
Federal rules and regulations, including but not limited to the Texas Open Records Act and the 
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974. 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed on behalf of the parties hereto as 
follows, to-wit: 
 
a) It has on the          day of                   , 20    , been executed by a representative of Texana 

Center duly acting upon the approval of its governing body:  and 
 
b) It has on the         day of                   , 20     , been executed by a representative of Lamar 

Consolidated Independent School District duly acting upon the approval of the Board of 
Trustees of the Lamar Consolidated Independent School District. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

Texana Center                       Lamar Consolidated Independent School District 
 
                                                  _________________________________________   
George Patterson, CEO                               Dr. Thomas Randle, Superintendent        
              
 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF _________________ 

 

BEFORE ME, the undersigning authority, on this the         day of                  , 20     , personally 
appeared ____________________________, the CEO of Texana Center, who after being duly 
sworn, on his oath deposed and stated that he signed the foregoing document for the consideration 
and purposes stated therein. 
     
     ________________________________________ 

Notary Public in and for _________________, Texas 
 

My commission Expires: 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 

19



Page 7 of 7 

  

COUNTY OF FORT BEND 

 
 

BEFORE ME, the undersigning authority, on this the          day of                     , 20     , personally 
appeared                                                     , the Superintendent of the Lamar Consolidated 
Independent School District, who after being duly sworn, on his oath deposed and stated that he 
signed the foregoing document for the consideration and purposes stated therein. 
 
 
     ________________________________________ 

Notary Public in and for Fort Bend County, Texas 
 

My commission Expires: 
 

                                                                               

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20



CONSIDER APPROVAL OF INTERAGENCY PROGRAM AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT AND  

RICHMOND STATE SUPPORTED LIVING CENTER (RSSLC) 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That the Board approve the Interagency Program Agreement attached between 
Richmond State Supported Living Center (RSSLC) and Lamar CISD for the 2012-2013 
school year. 
 

 

IMPACT/RATIONALE: 

 
Lamar CISD is required to educate all school age children who reside within district 
boundaries, regardless of where the parent or guardian resides.  Though the numbers 
of school age residents at RSSLC has declined since 1987, some children continue to 
be placed at RSSLC each school year. Current revenue to educate these students 
includes special education contact hours and special education capacity building 
federal funds. 
 
 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

 
Since the 1987-88 school year, Lamar CISD has assumed full responsibility for 
education of school-aged residents at RSSLC.  This has been required as a result of a 
court order issued by Judge Barefoot Sanders.  Cooperative programming by RSSLC 
and LCISD has proved to be very beneficial for the students and there is a positive 
working relationship between RSSLC and LCISD staff members. 
 
The Agreement is attached for Board review. 

 
 
 
Submitted by: Dr. Megan Whitley, Director of Special Education 
   Laura Lyons, Executive Director of Elementary Education    
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

9.A.#2. – INSTRUCTIONAL 

BOARD REPORT 

JULY 17, 2012 

21



Page 1 of 8 

 

 INTERAGENCY PROGRAM AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

 LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT AND 

 RICHMOND STATE SUPPORTED LIVING CENTER 

 

THIS AGREEMENT is made at the request of the Lamar Consolidated Independent School 
District through its Board of Trustees hereinafter referred to as the "District, and Richmond 
State Supported Living Center, hereinafter referred to as "State Supported Living Center". 
 

WHEREAS, the District and State Supported Living Center recognizes the desirability of 
providing education and treatment programs in the least restrictive environment to school 
age youth residing at State Supported Living Center; and  
 

WHEREAS, the District and the State Supported Living Center mutually recognize that the 
Memorandum of Agreement between the Texas Department of Mental Health and Mental 
Retardation and the Texas Education agency dated October 9, 1985 designates the 
District, at the present time, the appropriate source to supply education to these students; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of these premises and in future 
consideration of the matters hereinafter set forth, the District and State Supported Living 
Center to hereby stipulate and agree as follows: 
 

 I. 

 

 ELIGIBILITY 

 
To be eligible for special education services under this agreement, a student must be 
identified as handicapped according to the criteria developed by the Texas Education 
Agency and meet other state requirements for attendance and service provisions.  Each 
eligible student must be enrolled in the District and must have an Individual Education Plan 
(IEP) designated by the Admission Review and Dismissal/Individual Education Plan 
(ARD/IEP) committee before educational services are provided. 
 

 II. 

 

 RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE STATE SUPPORTED LIVING CENTER 

 

The State Supported Living Center agrees to: 
 
A. Make available to the District all referral and assessment information: current 

medical diagnosis and conditions, including immunizations and potential carrier 
status for any communicable disease; proof of birth; and copies of each student's  

 current Individual Program Plan (IPP).  Access to client records (POR) will be 
 provided for information necessary to facilitate District instructional services.  
 

22



Page 2 of 8 

 

 The Individual Program Plan (IPP) is generally defined to include the following  
 services based on need: 

1. Dental services 
2. Training and habilitation services 
3. Food and nutrition services 
4. Medical services 
5. Nursing services 
6. Pharmacy services 
7. Physical and occupational services 
8. Psychological services 
9. Recreation services 
10. Social services 
11. Speech pathology and audiological services 
12. Prior educational services 

 
B. Designate staff member(s) to serve as liaisons for the following activities: 
 

1. Attend the ARD/IEP Committee meetings. 
2. Resolve issues that arise in the area of student need. 
3. Resolve issues that arise in the areas of general State Supported Living 

Center and District services. 
 
C. Provide care, active treatment, and other customary services, as deemed 

appropriate by the State Supported Living Center's Interdisciplinary Team and each 
student's Individual Program Plan (IPP), to support a student's entry and ongoing 
participation in an educational program by the District. 

 
D. Provide and maintain appropriate instructional space for students the ARD 

determines need to be instructed on the State Supported Living Center campus, 
including access to students as appropriate on scheduled class days. 

 
1. Provide classroom space and furniture for instruction of dorm bound or 

campus class students, at no cost to the District for the duration of the 
instructional schedule designated in the student's IEP. 

2. When instructional space must be shared by State Supported Living Center 
and District personnel, provide locked cabinets for the storage of District 
instructional materials and equipment. 

3. Provide needed housekeeping/janitorial services to District class space on 
dorms at the finished of each instructional day and on an emergency basis. 

4. Deliver any needed linen to instructional settings on the State Supported 
Living Center campus. 

23



Page 3 of 8 

 

 
E. Coordinate services in the State Supported Living Center's Individual Program 

Plan (IPP) of active treatment with services provided in accordance with the 
Individual Education Plan (IEP). 

 
F. Communicate necessary information regarding client care and treatment daily or as 

needed to District staff. 
 
G. Provide transportation of students to and from the classroom, student's living 

quarters, to on-campus classes. 
 
H. Continue to provide services needed for care, treatment, and habilitation as 

determined by the IPP and which has been provided prior to the provision of 
education services by the District. 

 
I. Provide nursing services for those students that the ARD determines need 

instruction on the State Supported Living Center campus.  For students that the 
ARD determines need instruction off campus in District classes, provide the 
following services: 

 
1. Follow the health policy of the District and State Supported Living Center 

when illness or infectious/communicable diseases occur. 
2. Provide prescribed medication with physician's orders and recommendations 

for any special nursing services the student may need to appropriate District 
nurse. 

3. Provide timely transportation from District campus classes back to the State 
Supported Living Center campus when the student is ill or in need of 
immediate medical care by State Supported Living Center staff. 

 
J. Provide meals during the instructional day for those students the ARD 
 determines need to be served on campus in District classes. 
 
K. Adhere to the District student attendance policies and make every effort to avoid 

elective absences during school hours/days.  Any situation that precludes 
educational services as scheduled will be resolved by the Director of Education and 
Training at State Supported Living Center and the campus designee of the Director 
of Special Education at the District. 

 
L. Follow all federal and state requirements governing the development and 

implementation of the IPP, State Supported Living Center policy, and mutually 
agreed upon guideline for the implementation of this Agreement. 

 
 

24



Page 4 of 8 

 

 III. 

 

 RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DISTRICT 

 
A. Make available to the State Supported Living Center, educational assessments and 

updates, provide access to student records for information necessary to facilitate 
State Supported Living Center care, treatment and habilitation; and provide copies 
of the current/revised IEP.  Utilize, to the maximum extent possible, referral and 
assessment information from the State Supported Living Center's records in order 
to avoid unnecessary duplication of services. 

 
B. Designate staff member(s) to serve as liaisons for the following activities: 
 

1. Attend the IPP interdisciplinary team meetings. 
2. Resolve issues that arise in areas of student needs. 
3. Resolve issues that arise in areas of District and State Supported Living 

Center services. 
 
C. Provide and/or make available instructional services, including needed speech and 

language therapy, to the State Supported Living Center residents ages 3 through 21 
as determined by the ARD/IEP Committee in accordance with State Board of 
Education Rules for Special Education and federal regulations. 

 
D. Make available up to a six-hour instructional day in the least restrictive environment 

with any variation determined by the ARD/IEP Committee.  Utilize a variety of 
instructional settings to meet student needs including District classes off State 
Supported Living Center campus, Center Based classes on State Supported Living 
Center campus, Dorm based classes on the student's dorm, and bedside instruction 
in the infirmary.  Resolve conflicts between ARD/IEP and IDT Committee decisions 
through a joint committee meeting. 

 
E. Coordinate services of the District's Individual Education Plan (IEP) of active 

treatment. 
 
F. Communicate necessary information regarding student education daily or as 

needed to State Supported Living Center staff. 
 
G. Provide transportation for students to and from the State Supported Living Center 

for District classes and community Based Training. 
 
H. Provide the related services that the ARD deems necessary for the provision of 

appropriate instructional services.  Services include but are not limited to direct 
and/or consultative services in the areas listed below: 

25



Page 5 of 8 

 

1. Speech and Language therapy 
2. Occupational therapy 
3. Physical therapy 
4. Adaptive equipment 
5. Psychological services 
6. Diagnostic services 
7. School Health services 
8. Orientation and Mobility training 
9. Special transportation 
10. Counseling 

 
I. Provide nursing services for those students that the ARD determines need 

instruction off campus in District classes including the following: 
 

1. Follow the health policy of the District and the State Supported Living Center 
when illness or infectious/communicable diseases occur. 

2. Administer prescribed medication according to physicians' orders on file and 
follow any special nursing procedures the student may require. 

3. Complete and forward injury reports to the State Supported Living Center. 
4. Determine when a student is ill or in need of immediate medical care by 

State Supported Living Center staff and notify the dorm nurse. 
 
J. Provide meals during the school day for students instructed off campus in District 

classes in accordance with special dietary needs and physician’s orders.  For 
students attending on-campus classes, provide feeding and/or supervision and 
dietary information when appropriate. 

 
K. Inform the State Supported Living Center regarding Lamar Consolidated 

Independent School District attendance policies.  Minimize removal from instruction, 
enacting emergency removal only for health and safety reasons. 

 
L. Follow all federal and state requirements governing the development and 

implementation of the IEP, Lamar Consolidated Independent School District policy, 
and mutually agreed upon guidelines for the implementation of this agreement. 

 

 IV. 

 

 CONSULTATION BETWEEN PARTIES 

 
It is understood that after the execution of the agreement, representatives of the District 
and representatives of the State Supported Living Center will meet to formulate guidelines 
in furtherance of the agreement.  These mutually agreed upon guidelines will specify the 
procedures to be used to fully implement this Agreement. 
 

26



Page 6 of 8 

 

V. 

 

 LIMITATIONS 

 
It is understood that the educational program, which is the subject of this agreement, will 
be offered in accordance with each student's IEP and the District's school calendar 
designating holidays.  Both parties concur that the District agrees to provide education 
services only under the terms in this agreement.  The District assumes no responsibility for 
students upon dismissal from the State Supported Living Center unless the student is or 
becomes a resident of the District.  The terms of this Agreement constitute the total 
agreement between the District and the State Supported Living Center. 
 

 VI. 

 

 TERM 

 
This Agreement shall be effective beginning August 2012, upon execution by both parties, 
and shall continue in full force and effect until June 2013.  If the agreement made in this 
Agreement is to be continued beyond June 2013, a new Agreement will be executed. 
 

 VII. 

 

 PROVISION FOR OTHER AGREEMENTS 

 
It is recognized that either party may enter into other agreements and affiliations so long 
as these are not inconsistent with the terms and provisions of this Agreement. 
 

 VIII. 

 

 AMENDMENTS 

 
This Agreement may be amended only by written instrument duly executed by both parties 
and attached to this Agreement. 
 

 IX. 

 

 BINDING ON SUCCESSORS 

 
This Agreement shall bind and benefit the respective parties and their legal successors, but 
shall not otherwise be assignable, in whole or in part, by either party without first obtaining 
the written consent of the other party. 

27



Page 7 of 8 

 

X. 

 

 LEGALITY 

 
This Agreement shall be subject to all present and future valid laws, orders, rules, and 
regulations of The United States of America, The State of Texas, and other regulatory 
bodies thereof having jurisdiction. 

 

 XI. 

 

 CONFIDENTIALITY 

 
The District and State Supported Living Center offer mutual assurance that all matters 
relative to the sharing of information will be treated in a confidential manner in accordance 
with all applicable State and Federal rules and regulations, including but not limited to the 
Texas Open Records Act and the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed on behalf of the parties 
hereto as follows, to-wit: 
 
a) It has on the        day of                , 20   , been executed by a representative of 

Richmond State Supported Living Center duly acting upon the approval of its 
governing body:  and 

 
b) It has on the       day of                ,  20   , been executed by a representative of 

Lamar Consolidated Independent School District duly acting upon the approval 
of the Board of Trustees of the Lamar Consolidated Independent School District. 

 
 

ATTEST: 

 

Richmond State Supported Living Center             Lamar Consolidated 

Independent School District 
 
_____________________________      _____________________________________ 
RSSLC Representative                     Dr. Thomas Randle, Superintendent     
             
              

28



Page 8 of 8 

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF FORT BEND 

 

BEFORE ME, the undersigning authority, on this the        day of                  , 20    , 
personally appeared                                                        , the Superintendent of Richmond 
State Supported Living Center, who after being duly sworn, on his oath deposed and stated 
that he signed the foregoing document for the consideration and purposes stated therein. 
     
 
     ________________________________________ 

Notary Public in and for Fort Bend County, Texas 
 

My commission Expires: 
                                                                                      

 

 

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF FORT BEND 

 
 

BEFORE ME, the undersigning authority, on this the         day of                     , 20    , 
personally appeared                                                     , the Superintendent of the Lamar 
Consolidated Independent School District, who after being duly sworn, on his oath deposed 
and stated that he signed the foregoing document for the consideration and purposes 
stated therein. 
 
 
     ________________________________________ 

Notary Public in and for Fort Bend County, Texas 
 

My commission Expires: 
 

                                                                               

29



 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF SECONDARY CURRICULUM 
AT-A-GLANCES FOR CAREER AND TEHNICAL EDUCATION 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the secondary curriculum at-a-glance documents 
for Career and Technical Education. 
 
 

IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Board Policy EG Local states, “instruction shall be derived from a set of curriculum 
learnings common to all students.” The policy further states that, “the District expects 
that learning be enhanced  by adherence to a curriculum that promotes continuity and 
cumulative acquisition of skills and knowledge from grade to grade and from school to 
school… The curriculum shall be designed to provide teachers and students with the 
District’s expectations of what students must learn. Teachers are expected to follow the 
curriculum of the District.” 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
Secondary Career and Technical Education (CTE) working in content-area teams 
developed these courses. The course documents include student learning objectives in 
the sequence they are to be taught, grouped by six weeks, with suggested time ranges. 
 
Content-area instructional teams who developed these had multiple opportunities for 
input regarding revisions. Every opportunity has been taken to consider and respond 
appropriately to input from teachers. 
 

Submitted by: Dr. Walter Bevers, Executive Director, Secondary Education 
   Tracie Holub, Director, Career and Technical Education 
 

Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

9.A.#3. – INSTRUCTIONAL 
BOARD REPORT 

JULY 17, 2012 

30



 
CONSIDER APPROVAL TO PURCHASE RESOURCE FOR ELEMENTARY SCIENCE CURRICULUM 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Board of Trustees approve the purchase of AIMS digital resource to align with the new science 
curriculum. 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
Funds were set aside in the science curriculum budget to purchase items included in the new curriculum.  
This line item is intended to be included in five budget years.     

 At the elementary level resources from AIMS Education are imbedded and heavily referenced 
throughout the new curriculum purchased by the district two years ago. 

 Due to the changing TEKS in science, AIMS Education has been in the process of updating their 
materials to meet the rigor of the new TEKS.  The resources are now available, and the district will 
be able to purchase the books electronically.   

 The total cost of the District License is quoted as $52,350.  This price includes 4 full-day 
professional development workshops at no charge.   

 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
This proposal is for a District License for digital distribution by Lamar Consolidated Independent School 
District (LCISD) of AIMS State-Specific Science for Texas (© 2011) for K-5 teachers. 
 
This license gives LCISD the right to unlimited use of 884 modules by teachers at school sites within the 
district, as follows: 

 One module (Science) each for 84 kindergarten teachers 

 One module (Science) each for 77 first-grade teachers 

 Three modules (Earth, Life, Physical Science) each for 76 second-grade teachers 

 Three modules (Earth, Life, Physical Science) each for 62 third-grade teachers 

 Three modules (Earth, Life, Physical Science) each for 56 fourth-grade teachers 

 Three modules (Earth, Life, Physical Science) each for 47 fifth-grade teachers 
 
The number of teachers needing access was provided by campus principals.  
 
The individual activities of each module will be provided as unlocked PDF files on CDs.  The files on the 
CD will be housed in our online curriculum. 
 
AIMS Education has offered to permit the district to purchase the District License in installments over 
three budget years.  The following is the breakdown of the total cost of the District License to be 
purchased over three budget years:  

 2011-12 Budget - $20,000 money is allocated in budget.  

 2012-13 Budget - $16,350 is included in proposed budget. 

 2013-14 Budget - $16,000 will be included in proposed budget. 
 
Submitted By:  Dr. Walter Bevers, Executive Director of Secondary Education 
   Laura Lyons, Executive Director of Elementary Education 
   Suzanne Welch, Science Curriculum and Instructional Specialist 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent   

9.A.#4. – INSTRUCTIONAL 
BOARD REPORT 

JULY 17, 2012 

31



 
 
 

CONSIDER RATIFICATION OF FINANCIAL AND INVESTMENT REPORTS 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Board of Trustees ratify the Financial and Investment Reports as presented. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

Financial reporting is intended to provide information useful for many purposes.  The 
reporting function helps fulfill government’s duty to be publicly accountable, as well as to 
help satisfy the needs of users who rely on the reports as an important source of 
information for decision-making.  

Financial reports and statements are end products of the reporting process.  You will 
find attached the following reports: 

 Ratification of June 2012 Disbursements, all funds 

o List of disbursements for the month by type of expenditure 

 Financial Reports 

o Year-to-Date Cash Receipts and Expenditures, General Fund only 

o Investment Report 

 

Submitted by:  Jill Ludwig, Chief Financial Officer 

 

Recommended for ratification: 
 

Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

9.B.#1. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JULY 17, 2012 

32



SCHEDULE OF JUNE 2012 DISBURSEMENTS 
 

 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
All disbursements made by the Accounting Department are submitted to the Board of Trustees for ratification on a 
monthly basis.  Disbursements made during the month of June total $15,794,740 and are shown below by 
category: 
 

 

3-Digit Object Description Disbursements

611/612 Salaries and Wages, All Personnel 11,554,699         

614 Employee Benefits 324,551

621 Professional Services 211,952

623 Education Services Center 16,667

624 Contracted Maintenance and Repair Services 425,404

625 Utilities 140,805

626 Rentals and Operating Leases 86,283

629 Miscellaneous Contracted Services 328,320

631 Supplies and Materials for Maintenance and Operations 126,336

632 Textbooks and Other Reading Materials 110,562

633 Testing Materials 7,752

634 Food Service 227,241

639 General Supplies and Materials 899,629

641 Travel and Subsistence -- Employee and Student 149,192

642 Insurance and Bonding Costs 500

649 Miscellaneous Operating Costs/Fees and Dues 522,763

659 Other Debt Services Fees 3,500

661 Land Purchase and/or Improvements 17,750

662 Building Purchase, Construction, and/or Improvements 497,375

663 Furniture & Equipment - $5,000 or more per unit cost 81,950

131 Inventory Purchases 56,593
217 Operating Transfers, Loans and Reimbursements 959

573/575/592 Miscellaneous Refunds/Reimbursements to Campuses 3,957

Total 15,794,740  
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The report above represents all expenditures made during the month of June 2012 including purchasing card 
transactions from the previous month.  The detailed check information is available upon request. 
 

                                                

33



PERCENT

AMENDED BUDGET ACTUAL/

CASH RECEIPTS BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE BUDGET

5700-LOCAL REVENUES 104,878,202.00   102,927,131.00   (1,951,071.00)      98.1%

5800-STATE PROGRAM REVENUES 75,322,616.00     56,834,030.00     (18,488,586.00)    75.5%

  

5900-FEDERAL PROGRAM REVENUES 1,520,000.00       2,207,430.00       687,430.00          145.2%

TOTAL- REVENUES 181,720,818.00   161,968,591.00   (19,752,227.00)    89.1%

EXPENDITURES

6100-PAYROLL COSTS 150,586,731.00   116,906,964.00   33,679,767.00     77.6%

 

6200-PROFESSIONAL/CONTRACTED SVCS. 13,395,395.00     7,759,570.00       5,635,825.00       57.9%

  

6300-SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS 9,138,759.00       5,863,425.00       3,275,334.00       64.2%

  

6400-OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 9,813,474.00       7,463,768.00       2,349,706.00       76.1%

  

6600-CAPITAL OUTLAY 818,495.00          329,497.00          488,998.00          40.3%

TOTAL-EXPENDITURES 183,752,854.00   138,323,224.00   45,429,630.00     75.3%

 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2012

YEAR TO DATE CASH RECEIPTS AND EXPENDITURES

(BUDGET AND ACTUAL)

34



35



 
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUESTS 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees consider approval of budget amendment requests as 
attached. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
The proposed amendments represent budget amendments that require school board 
approval because budgeted funds are being reallocated between functional categories 
and/or new budgets are being established.  
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Budget amendments are mandated by the state for budgeted funds reallocated from 
one functional level, and state and/or federal project to another.  These budget changes 
are usually the result of unexpected levels of expenditures in certain categories and 
amendments are for legal compliance. Other budget amendments are determined by 
the school board.   
 
Since the operating budget for LCISD is adopted at the functional level, budget 
revisions are required for reallocations between functional levels or when new budgets 
are being established. All necessary budget amendments must be formally adopted by 
the school board and recorded in the board minutes.  (TEA Financial Accountability 
System Resource Guide, Financial Accounting & Reporting, Update 14.0) 
 
 
Submitted by: Jill Ludwig, Chief Financial Officer 
Resource:  Yvonne Dawson, Budget and Treasury Officer   
 
 
Recommended for approval: 
 
 

Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

9.B.#2. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JULY 17, 2012 

36



 
Staff Development is requesting a budget change to pay for staff development of newly 
hired staff. 
 
199-13 Curriculum and Instr. Staff Development (6,075.00) 
199-61 Community Services 6,075.00 

37



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BUDGET UPDATE 

 

 

 
Jill Ludwig and Yvonne Dawson will provide the Board details regarding the 2012 – 
2013 budget. 
 
 
 
Resource Person:  Jill Ludwig, Chief Financial Officer 
 
 

9.B.#3a. – PLANNING 

BOARD REPORT 

JULY 17, 2012 

38



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF PUBLIC MEETING TO DISCUSS 
BUDGET AND PROPOSED TAX RATE 

 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve August 16, 2012 as the date for the public meeting 
to discuss budget and the proposed tax rate. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
After the board agrees upon the proposed tax rate and publishes the notice, the board 
must call the required public meeting to discuss the budget and proposed tax rate.  At 
least 10, but no more than 30 days before the public meeting, the “Notice of Public 
Meeting to Discuss Budget and Proposed Tax Rate” must be published in strict 
accordance with the requirements of Texas Education Code section 44.004.  The 
budget must be approved by law prior to September 1. 
 
Submitted by:  Jill Ludwig, Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 
 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 
 
 

9.B.#3b. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JULY 17, 2012 

39



 
 
 
 
 
 
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF PROPOSED TAX RATE THAT WILL BE PUBLISHED IN 

THE NOTICE FOR THE PUBLIC MEETING 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the tax rate to be published in the newspaper in the 
Notice of Public Meeting to Discuss Budget and Proposed Tax Rate. 
 
M&O:  $____________ 
I&S:    $_____________ 
Total:  $_____________ 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
The two-part tax rate and additional information will be presented at the meeting during 
the Budget Update.  The rate for Maintenance and Operations will be proposed 
separately from the Interest and Sinking Fund rate. 
 
 
Submitted by:  Jill Ludwig, Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 
 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 
 
 
 

9.B.#3c. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JULY 17, 2012 

40



 

 

 
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF GENERAL MERCHANDISE VENDORS 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve all local vendors with retail locations within 
the proximity of Lamar CISD who responded to the general merchandise bid for a 
term of one year with an option to renew for two additional years.  
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Funds for General Merchandise items are allocated from each campus and/or 
department’s local funding.  This type of award will ensure that each campus and 
user department will be in compliance with the state bid laws. 

  
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Bid #24-2012 requested discounts from shelf price from area stores to establish 
net pricing for district purchases.  A bid invitation was delivered to numerous 
stores requested by campuses and those currently patronized by our campuses 
and departments.  Purchasing is recommending an award to all stores that 
submitted a bid, regardless of discount, because they are convenient to our 
campuses and facilities, offer seasonal discounts and donations, and provide a 
large product selection.   

 
Submitted by:   Audrey L. Fox, Purchasing Manager  
   Jill Ludwig, Chief Financial Officer  
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 
 

9.B.#4. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JULY 17, 2012 

41



 
 
 
Bid No. 24-2012 
 
Board Agenda: July 17, 2012 
Description: General Merchandise  

 
Recommended Vendor(s): 

 

Aves Audio 10-75% 

Central Ace Hardware 15% 

David’s Tackle Box 0% 

HEB 0% 

Hobby Lobby 10% 

Kroger 0% 

Party City Corporation 10-20% 

Plantation Tru Value 10% 

Teacher Heaven 10% 

Terra Flora 0% 

 

 
 

 

42



CONSIDER APPROVAL OF  
CLASSROOM INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Board of Trustees approve all vendors who responded to the classroom instructional 
materials and supplies bid for a term of one year with an option of two automatic one year 
renewals if both parties agree and terms and conditions remain the same. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
Purchases for Classroom Instructional Materials and Supplies are allocated from each campus or 
department’s local, federal grant, or bond funds.  This type of award is beneficial to this District 
because it allows campuses a larger variety of items to choose from while helping to insure 
availability of all items selected.  Any large aggregated purchases of instructional materials and 
supplies will be quoted separately to take advantage of volume discounts. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
The intent of Bid 25-2012 is to establish a discount from catalog or published price list for a variety 
of instructional materials categories.  The categories included in this bid are: 
  
Adaptive Educational Supplies Art Equipment and Supplies 
Audio Visual Supplies and Equipment Books/Paperbacks 
Career and College Readiness Related Materials Classroom Specialty Items 
Classroom Equipment Supply Elementary Musical Instruments/ Supplies 
Instructional Videos and CDs Journalism/Photographic Supplies 
Laminating/Duplicating Supply Maps and Globes 
Math Supplies and Equipment Physical Education Equipment and Supplies 
Science Equipment and Supplies Special Education Equipment 
Testing and Assessment Materials Theatrical Supply 
Vocational Equipment and Supplies  
 
Using this bid, teachers and curriculum departments may competitively purchase a wide variety of 
equipment and supplies when exact quantities cannot be specified or anticipated in advance.   
Purchasing is recommending an award to all vendors who submitted a completed bid package 
regardless of discount.  A list of awarded vendors is included on the following page. 
 
Submitted by: Audrey L. Fox, Purchasing Manager 
   Jill Ludwig, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
    

9.B.#5. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JULY 17, 2012 

43



 

Advanced Graphics AIMS Educational Foundation Applied Practice, Ltd. Saddleback Educational, Inc. 

Attainment Company, Inc. Big Brainz Inc. Carlex Inc. Sala Printing Service 

Continental Book Company, Inc. Creative Mathematics Curriculum Associates Sammons Preston 

David’s Tackle Box Ballard & Tighe Publishers Educational Innovations, Inc. Santillana USA Publishing Co. 

Education Plus ExploreLearning First Impact Education Sargent-Welch 

Frog Publications Heinemann Herff Jones, Inc. Sax Arts & Crafts 

Jarrett Publishing Company Jones School Supply Co. Junior Library Guild Scholastic Equipment Company 

KAPCO Knowledge Matters, Inc. Lab Resources, Inc. Scholastic Library Publishing 

Learning A-Z Library Video Company Lingui Systems Inc. School Health Corporation 

Macie Publishing Company Mackin Educational Resources Mayer-Johnson, LLC School Media Associates 

Mentoring Minds, L.P. Mind Research Institute Multi-Health Systems Inc. School Nurse Supply 

Pearson Education QEP Professional Books Reading Reading Books, LLC School Specialty 

Rick Trow Productions, Inc. Sargent-Welch/VWR School Specialty Schoolhouse Audio Visual 

Science Kit Southwest Book Company Stage Accents Science Kit 

Sullivan Supply Summit Products Suntex International Science Select, LLC 

Super Duper Publications Teachers Discovery Inc. Texas Art Supply Company Seedlings Braille Books for Children 

The Writing Academy (TWA) U.S. School Supply Valiant National AV Supply Selections Promotional Products 

Visual Learning Systems Voyager Learning and Sopris Learning  Show What You Know Publishing 

 

44



 
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF PROPOSAL FOR  

PORTABLE BUILDING RELOCATION AND SETUP 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve Cherry House Moving for the relocation of portable 
buildings and setup as needed. 
  
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
CSP 26-2012 requested prices for the moving of portable classroom buildings as 
needed throughout the District.  The unit prices requested also include labor and 
materials for installation of ramps, decks, canopies, and poles. 
 
The Maintenance and Operations Department worked with the Purchasing Department 
on bid specifications, evaluation, and award recommendation.  The evaluation of each 
contractor and final decision was done through a cost analysis and 14 point weighted 
evaluation system pre-established in the bid. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
This bid will be awarded as an annual contract with the option of renewal for two 
additional one year periods if both parties agree and terms and conditions remain the 
same, with the exception of any documented increases in labor, material, or disposal 
costs delineated by the contractor and accepted by the District prior to renewal.  
 
 
Submitted by: Audrey L. Fox, Purchasing Manager 
   Jill Ludwig, Chief Financial Officer 
   Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
    
 

 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

 

9.B.#6. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JULY 17, 2012 

45



Cherry House 

Moving Inc

Bass 

Construction 

Co., Inc.

Ground Force 

Building 

Systems

Basic Cost per Building

Remove tie-downs, blocks, move, reinstall 

level and tie-downs classroom buildings:

24 x 32 $2,895.00 $3,345.00 No Bid

24 x 64 $3,745.00 $4,325.00 No Bid

Move, reinstall, level, and tie-down 

classroom buildings (within 12-mile radius):

24 x 32 $3,395.00 $3,925.00 No Bid

24 x 64 $4,250.00 $4,895.00 No Bid

Move, reinstall, level, and tie-down 

classroom buildings (within 24-mile radius):

24 x 32 $3,395.00 $3,925.00 No Bid

24 x 64 $4,250.00 $4,895.00 No Bid

Cost per additional leveling block. $3.00 $4.00 No Bid

Cost per additional tie-down. $48.50 $55.00 No Bid

Cost per additional termite shields. $5.00 $6.00 No Bid

Aluminum Ramps/Decks/Canopies/Poles - District Provided

Labor and Materials cost to install per linear 

foot for Ramps and Decks $24 per sq ft $9.50 per l/f No Bid

Labor and Material cost to install per linear 

foot for Canopies $10 per sq ft $11.50 per l/f No Bid

Labor and Material cost to install per pole 

for Canopies

Included in 

canopy price $90 each No Bid

Additional Cost

Base Pads $4 each $5 each No Bid

Equipment Mobilization Fee $500.00 $750.00 No Bid

Shim Pads $2 each $3 each No Bid

Remove/reinstall fences $10 per l/f n/a No Bid

Remove/reinstall skirting $10 per l/f n/a No Bid

7/17/2012

Portable Building Relocation and Setup

CSP 26-2012

Proposal Summary

46



Each line item is weighted by points.  The number of points awarded may be all, partial, or none.

A low number means low evaluation and a high number means a high evaluation of the line item.

13 PTS 11.0 6.7 0.0

12 PTS 7.0 9.0 0.0

9 PTS 9.0 4.7 0.0

8 PTS 8.0 6.7 0.0

8  PTS 8.0 6.7 0.0

8  PTS 8.0 8.0 0.0

6  PTS 6.0 6.0 0.0

6  PTS 6.0 6.0 0.0

5 PTS 5.0 5.0 0.0

5  PTS 5.0 4.0 0.0

5  PTS 4.3 5.0 0.0

5  PTS 1.7 1.7 0.0

5  PTS 3.3 3.3 0.0

5 PTS 5.0 4.7 0.0

100  PTS 87.3 77.3 0.0

The Contractor's Standard Moving Program for the District

TOTAL POINTS

Previous experience of the Contractor with contracts of comparable magnitude and quantities

The sufficiency of the contractors total resources

The probability that the Contractor can perform in accordance with the proposal documents

The responsibility and reputation of the Contractor

Guaranteed maximum response time

The likelihood that the Contractor will perform without delay or interference

The quality and availability of the Contractors personnel and services

Ground 

Force 

Building 

Systems

The Contractor's previous compliance with laws affecting the project

The amount of values in the additional pricing submittals

The number and scope of conditions, if any, attached to the proposal by the Contractor

Safety record of Contractor according to OSHA inspection logs for the last three years, a loss 

analysis from the Contractor's insurance carrier and a loss history covering all lines of insurance 

coverage carried by the Contractor

INSPECTIONS & SERVICES EVALUATION (Average of 3 appraisers)

Cherry 

House 

Moving Inc

Bass 

Construction 

Co., Inc.

The amount of the base proposal

The amount of the linear foot cost

47



 
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF PURCHASE OF  

TECHNOLOGY VEHICLES 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the purchase of five small Cargo Utility Vehicles 
and one Step Van Truck with Lift Gate from Helfman Ford in the amount of $133,655. 
  
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Bid #27-2012 requested prices to purchase service vehicles for the Technology 
Services Department. The rationale to purchase these vehicles comes from department 
research including: 

 Technicians are using their personal vehicles to travel within the district and this 
has proven inefficient. 

 The technicians may not have insurance coverage when using their personal 
vehicle for district travel. 

 The cost of mileage reimbursement to technicians. 
 

The bid specifications included an additional Service Truck, but a bid was not received. 
This item will be acquired through a formal quote process in the near future and is 
anticipated not to exceed $40,000.  The Technology Department worked with the 
Purchasing Department on bid specifications, evaluation, and award recommendation. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
These vehicles will be used in the daily operations the Technology Department.  The 
Technology Department is replacing one very high-mileage van and one older van that 
no longer operates, and adding five small Cargo Utility Vans to their fleet. 
 
 
Submitted by: Audrey L. Fox, Purchasing Manager 
   Jill Ludwig, Chief Financial Officer 
   David Jacobson, Chief Technology Information Officer    
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

9.B.#7. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JULY 17, 2012 

48



Item Qty. Description Helfman Ford Legacy Ford

1 1 Service Van No Bid No Bid

2 1 Step Van Truck with Lift Gate 31,080.00 No Bid

3 5 Technician Vehicle Transit XL Van 20,515.00 No Bid

Total Awarded (Sum of Quantity x Bolded Cost) 133,655.00$  -$               

Bid Summary

Bid No. 27-2012

Technology Vehicles

July 17, 2012

49



 
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF OPERATION SERVICES FOR DISTRICT  

WATER AND SEWER TREATMENT FACILITIES 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve Si Environmental for the operation services for 
district water and sewer treatment facilities including cleaning of district grease traps. 
  
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Competitive Sealed Proposal #28-2012 requested prices for an annual contract for 
Operation Services for District Water and Sewer Treatment Facilities and cleaning of 
district grease traps.  This proposal covers water wells, chlorination equipment, storage 
and pressurization equipment, lift stations and waste water treatment. 
 
The Maintenance and Operations Department worked with the Purchasing Department 
on bid specifications, evaluation, and award recommendation.  The evaluation process 
included a 14-point weighted evaluation system pre-established in the bid.  The district 
received only one bid to evaluate. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
This bid will be awarded as an annual contract with the option of two automatic one year 
renewals if both parties agree and terms and conditions remain the same, with the 
exception of any documented increases in labor, material or disposal costs delineated 
by the contractor and accepted by the District prior to renewal. This agreement will 
commence on August 1, 2012. 
 
 
Submitted by: Audrey L. Fox, Purchasing Manager 
   Jill Ludwig, Chief Financial Officer 
   Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations  
     
 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

9.B.#8. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JULY 17, 2012 

50



Description Si Environmental LLC

Basic Monthly Opertions Fee (State 

Required  & Recommended Levels) $10,100.00

Basic Monthly Operations Fee (State 

Required Levels Only) $9,300.00

% Markup for Materials Purchased 10%

% Markup for Supervision & Inspections of 

Sub-Contractors 12%

Bacteriological Analysis Est $60/month

Annual Subsidence District Report $50/month

Preparation of Other Reports, as required $110/month

Performance Bond, if required by District Est 2% of contract

Additional Charges

Line Jet Truck $135/hour;       

Additional Grease Trap 

Cleaning $440/hour

Labor Charges for Contractor Personnel

Non-Skilled Laborer Straight Time $25.00

Non-Skilled Laborer Overtime $37.50

Field Service Representative Straight Time $25.00

Field Service Representative Overtime $37.50

Field Operator Straight Time $30.00

Field Operator Overtime $45.00

Equipment Operator Straight Time $30.00

Ewuipment Operator Overtime $45.00

Technician Straight Time $45.00

Technician Overtime $67.50

Foreman Straight Time $40.00

Foreman Overtime $60.00

Supervisor Straight Time $50.00

Supervisor Overtime $75.00

Proposal Summary

CSP 28-2012

Operation Services for District Water & Sewer Treatment Facilities 

Including Grease Traps

July 17, 2012

Page 1 of 5

51



Equipment Charges (Per Hour)

16 ft Trailer $15.00

Service Truck $15.00

Flat Bed Truck, 1 ton or larger $30.00

Dump Truck $50.00

1 ton Winch Truck $50.00

2 ton Winch Truck $50.00

Air Compressor N/A

Back Hoe Rig: Flat Bed Truck, Back Hoe & 

Trailer $60.00

7 ton Crane Truck N/A

High Pressure Pipe Cleaner (Hydra) $65.00

Vactor Truck (Plus Dump Fee) $125.00

Water Plant Operations (Per Year)

Foster/Briscoe Plant $7,200.00

Powell Point $4,000.00

Williams Elementary $7,200.00

Page 2 of 5

52



Grease Trap Cleaning (Per Year)

Austin Elementary 1400 gallons $800.00

Beasley Elementary 1100 gallons $800.00

Bowie Elementary 100 gallons $800.00

Campbell Elementary 5000 gallons $1,250.00

Dickinson Elementary 5920 gallons $1,250.00

Frost Elementary 5000 gallons $1,250.00

Hubenak Elementary 5000 gallons $1,250.00

Huggins Elementary 960 gallons $550.00

Hutchison Elementary 5000 gallons $1,250.00

Jackson Elementary 160 gallons $550.00

Long Elementary 720 gallons (2) $1,250.00

Long Elementary 960 gallons $550.00

McNeill Elementary 2500 gallons $1,250.00

Meyer Elementary 1200 gallons $800.00

Pink Elementary 5000 gallons $1,250.00

Ray Elementary 200 gallons $550.00

Seguin Elementary 200 gallons $1,250.00

Smith Elementary 7000 gallons $1,250.00

Thomas Elementary 5000 gallons $1,250.00

Travis Elementary 1200 gallons $1,250.00

Velasquez Elementary 5000 gallons $1,250.00

Williams Elementary 1200 gallons $800.00

Foster HS 18000 gallons $1,250.00

Briscoe JHS 12000 gallons $1,250.00

Wertheimer MS 5000 gallons $1,250.00

George Ranch HS 10000 gallons $800.00

Reading JHS 8500 gallons $1,500.00

Lamar HS 750 gallons $600.00

Lamar HS 6000 gallons $1,250.00

Lamar JHS 3000 gallons $1,250.00

Wessendorff MS 4500 gallons $1,250.00

Terry HS 1200 gallons $800.00

George JHS 250 gallons $550.00

Navarro MS 1200 gallons $800.00

Page 3 of 5

53



Lift Stations (Per Year)

George Ranch HS $4,000.00

Hutchison Elementary $4,000.00

Lamar JH/Credit Union Side $4,000.00

Foster HS, includes WWTP $14,000.00

Williams Elementary, includes WWTP $14,000.00

Velasquez Elementary $4,000.00

Grit Traps (Per Year)

Transportation Dept $550.00

Maintenance Dept $550.00

AG Farm $550.00

Acid Traps (Per Year)

Terry HS $550.00

Page 4 of 5

54



Each line item is weighted by points.  The number of points awarded may be all, partial, or none.

A low number means low evaluation and a high number means a high evaluation of the line item.

1 12 PTS 10.3

2 10 PTS 9.7

3 9 PTS 8.7

4 8 PTS 7.7

5 8 PTS 9.3

6 8 PTS 8.0

7 8 PTS 7.7

8 7 PTS 7.7

9 5 PTS 1.3

10 5  PTS 4.7

11 5  PTS 5.0

12

5  PTS

5.0

13 5  PTS 1.3

14 5 PTS 5.0

100 PTS 91.3

Safety record of Contractor according to the OSHA inspection logs for the last three years, 

a loss analysis from the Contractor's insurance carrier and a loss history covering all lines 

of insurance coverage carride by the Contractor.

PROPOSAL EVALUATION (Average of 3 appraisers)

Si 

Environmental 

LLC

The amount of the base proposal.

The amounts of the values in the additional pricing submittal.

The sufficiency of the Contractors total resources.

The probability that the Contractor can perform in accordance with the proposal 

documents.

Previous satisfactory experience with Lamar CISD.

The responsibility and reputation of the Contractor.

Guaranteed maximum resonse time.

The likelihood that the Contractor will perform without delay or interference.

TOTAL

Scope, ability, and technical support available from home office.

The quality and availability of the Contractors personnel and services.

The quality of the Contractors performance on previous projects.

The Contractors previous compliance with laws affecting the project.

The number and scope of conditions, if any, attached to the proposal by the Contractor.

55



Si Environmental, LLC Agreement  
 

Operation Services For District Water & Sewer Treatment Facilities 

 

July 17, 2012 

 

This Agreement is made between Lamar Consolidated Independent School District, 3911 Avenue I, Rosenberg, 

Texas 77471; and Si Environmental, LLC, 6420 Reading Road, Rosenberg, Texas, 77471. 

 

In this Agreement, the party who is contracting to receive services shall be referred to as “LCISD” and the party 

who will be providing the services shall be referred to as “SE”. 

 

Therefore the parties agree to the following: 

 

 LCISD will pay SE Ten Thousand, One Hundred Dollars ($10,100.00) monthly for Basic Monthly 

Operations Fee for State Required and Recommended Levels of Service, Fifty Dollars ($50.00) a month for 

the Annual Subsidence District Report, and One Hundred Ten Dollars ($110.00) a month for Preparation of 

Other Reports Required.  

 Percentage of Mark-up. 

A. Materials Purchased    10% 

B. Supervision and Inspection of Sub-Contractors 10% 

 Bacteriological Analysis – Not to exceed $60.00 per month. 

 All other pricing will be consistent with pricing submitted for CSP No. 28-2012. 

 Performance of Scope of Services will correspond with CSP No. 28-2012 – Operation Services For District 

Water & Sewer Treatment Facilities (Includes Cleaning of Grease Traps District-Wide), July 3, 2012. 

 Length of the Agreement: August 1, 2012 to July 31, 2013.  

A. Automatic renewal for two additional one year periods if the terms and conditions remain the 

same with the exception of any documented increases in labor costs or disposal costs clearly 

delineated by the contractor and accepted by LCISD prior to renewal. Request for an increase 

must be submitted in writing with documentation no later than sixty (60) days prior to the contract 

end date.   

 

Both Parties agree that the complete agreement between us about these services will consist of this  

CSP No. 28-2012 – Operation Services For District Water & Sewer Treatment Facilities (Includes Cleaning of 

Grease Traps District-Wide). 

 

Agreed to:      Agreed to: 

Lamar Consolidated Independent School District  Si Environmental, LLC 

 

 

 

By: ____________________________________  By:  _______________________________________ 

           Authorized Signature                                                                 Authorized Signature 

 

 

 

Authorized Name (print) ___________________                      Authorized Name (print) ______________________ 

 

Customer Address:     Si Environmental, LLC Address: 

Lamar Consolidated Independent School District  Si Environmental, LLC 

3911 Avenue       6420 Reading Road 

Rosenberg, Texas 77471     Rosenberg, Texas  77471 

(832) 223- 0000      (832) 490-1500 

56



 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF DONATIONS TO THE DISTRICT 
 
 
 

RECOMMEDATION: 
That the Board of Trustees approve donations to the district. 
 

 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
Policy CDC (Local) states that the Board of Trustees must approve any donation with a 
value in excess of $2,500. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Austin PTO donated $4,532.13 to purchase promethean boards for Austin Elementary 
School. 
 
Memorial Hermann donated $5,000 to sponsor the third annual Monster Mash at Dickinson 
Elementary School. 
 
Flour donated $16,450 to purchase school supplies and backpacks for every student at 
Smith Elementary School. 
 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

9.B.#9. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JULY 17, 2012 

57



 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF NAMING NEW SCHOOL 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees change the name of John Arredondo Elementary 
(Elementary #23) to John M. Arredondo Elementary. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 

In accordance with Board Policy CW (Local), the responsibility for naming facilities rests 
with the Board. School facilities shall generally be named for persons or places.  If the 
name of a person is to be considered, that individual shall be deceased and should 
have attained prominence locally or nationally with local prominence taking precedence 
in the fields of education, science, art, statesmanship, political science, or military 
achievement, or having been an early Texas pioneer, or an outstanding president of the 
United States. If the name of a place is to be considered, the criteria should include 
historical relevance.   
 
The Arredondo family would like the official school name to include the middle initial. 
The middle initial is included in the John M. Arredondo Bridge in Rosenberg. 
 
 
 
 
 
Submitted by:  Mike Rockwood, Executive Director of Community Relations 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

9.B.#10. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JULY 17, 2012 

58



 

 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF TEA CONSORTIUM COMMITMENT 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees affirms the commitment of the Lamar Consolidated 
Independent School District to participate in the Texas Education Agency (TEA) Texas 
High Performance Schools Consortium, if selected. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 

Created by Senate Bill 1557, 82nd Texas Legislature (2011), the purpose of the Texas 
High Performance Schools Consortium (“Consortium”) is to inform the governor, 
legislature and commissioner of education (“commissioner”) concerning methods for 
transforming public schools in Texas through the development of innovative, next-
generation learning standards, assessment and accountability systems. The 
commissioner is authorized to select up to 20 districts and open-enrollment charter 
schools, representing a range of district types, sizes and diverse student populations, to 
comprise the Consortium. 
 
The commissioner, in collaboration with the Consortium, is required to develop and 
submit to the legislature and governor, a legislative proposal for next-generation 
standards, assessment, and an accountability system designed to effectively enhance 
student learning.  
 
The Consortium will address four principles:  digital learning, learning standards, 
multiple assessments, and local control. 
 
If selected, participation in the Consortium will include periodic convenings to discuss 
methods to transform learning opportunities for all students, build cross-district and 
cross-school support systems and training, and share best practices and processes. 
 
 
Submitted by:  Mike Rockwood, Executive Director of Community Relations 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

9.B.#11. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JULY 17, 2012 

59



 
 

 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF BOARD POLICIES 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve Localized Policy Manual Updates 93 and 94 on first 
reading.  Policy manual updates must be approved in sequence.  The law is requiring  
districts to adopt Update 94 by August 1, 2012. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The primary function of the Board of Trustees is to adopt policies for the operation of the 
District.  Local policies are customized to provide a procedure to enforce the legal 
policies and district guidelines. 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 
 

9.B.#12. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JULY 17, 2012 

60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



Lamar CISD 
079901 

ADDITION 
WELLNESS AND HEALTH SERVICES               FFAF 
CARE PLANS              (LOCAL) 
 
 
FOOD ALLERGY  The District shall develop and implement a student food allergy 
MANAGEMENT PLAN management plan that includes the components below. 
 
      GENERAL  Procedures to limit the risk posed to students with food allergies 
      PROCEDURES  shall include: 
 

1. Specialized training for employees responsible for the de-
velopment, implementation, and monitoring of the District’s 
food allergy management plan. 

 
2. Awareness training for employees regarding signs and symp-

toms of food allergies and emergency response in the event 
of an anaphylactic reaction. 

 
3. General strategies to reduce the risk of exposure to common 

food allergens. 
 

4. Methods for requesting specific food allergy information from 
a parent of a student with a diagnosed food allergy.  [See FD] 

 
5. Annual review of the District’s food allergy management plan. 

 
      STUDENTS AT RISK Procedures regarding the care of students with diagnosed food 
      FOR ANAPHYLAXIS allergies who are at risk for anaphylaxis shall include: 
 

1. Development and implementation of food allergy action plans, 
emergency action plans, individualized health-care plans, and 
Section 504 plans, as appropriate. 

 
2. Training, as necessary for employees and others to imple-

ment each student’s care plan, including strategies to reduce 
the student’s risk of exposure to the diagnosed allergen. 

 
3. Review of individual care plans and procedures periodically 

and after an anaphylactic reaction at school or at a school-
related activity. 

 
DEFINITIONS   In accordance with state guidelines, and for the purposes of 
    these procedures, the following definitions will apply: 
 
      FOOD   An unpleasant reaction to a food that, unlike a food allergy, does 
      INTOLERANCE  not involve an immune system response or the release of hista- 
    mine.  Food intolerance is not life-threatening. 
 
 
 
DATE ISSUED:  6/7/2012 
UPDATE 94 
FFAF(LOCAL)           1 of 8 

114



Lamar CISD 
079901 
 
WELLNESS AND HEALTH SERVICES               FFAF 
CARE PLANS              (LOCAL) 
 
 
      ALLERGIC  An immune-mediated reaction to a protein.  Allergic reactions  
      REACTION  are not normally harmful. 
 
 
      SEVERE FOOD  An allergy that might cause an anaphylactic reaction. 
      ALLERGY 
 
      ANAPHYLACTIC  A serious allergic reaction that is rapid in onset and may cause 
      REACTION  death. 
 
      FOOD ALLERGY  A plan developed and implemented by the District that includes 
      MANAGEMENT  general procedures to limit the risk posed to students with food  
      PLAN (FAMP)  allergies and specific procedures to address the care of students 

with a diagnosed food allergy who are at risk for anaphylaxis. 
 
      FOOD ALLERGY  A personalized plan written by a health-care provider that speci- 
      ACTION PLAN  fies the delivery of accommodations and services needed by a  
      (FAAP)   student with a food allergy and actions to be taken in the event of  

an allergic reaction. 
 
      EMERGENCY  A personalized emergency plan written by a health-care provider 
      ACTION PLAN  that specifies the delivery of accommodations and services  
      (EAP)   needed by a student in the event of a food allergy reaction. 
 
      INDIVIDUALIZED  A plan written by a school nurse based on orders written by a  
      HEALTH-CARE  health-care provider that details accommodations or nursing 
      PLAN (IHP)  services to be provided to a student because of the student’s  
    medical condition. 
 
DISTRICT FOOD  The Superintendent has designated the following staff person 
ALLERGY   as the District food allergy coordinator for students. 
COORDINATOR   

Position:    Director of Student Support Services 
Address:    3911 Avenue I, Rosenberg, TX 77471 
Telephone:    832-223-0000 

 
RESPONSIBILITIES  The District food allergy coordinator will: 
 

1. Coordinate the development and ensure implementation of  
the District’s FAMP. 

 
2. Be responsible for disseminating applicable District policies, 

procedures, and the FAMP. 
 

 
DATE ISSUED:  6/7/2012 
UPDATE 94 
FFAF(LOCAL)           2 of 8 

115



Lamar CISD 
079901 
 
WELLNESS AND HEALTH SERVICES               FFAF 
CARE PLANS              (LOCAL) 
 
 

3. Develop, or assist in the development of food allergy request, 
notice, and incident report forms, as well as District-approved 
forms.  [See FD, FFAC and FFAF] 

 
4. Ensure that specific food allergy information is requested 

from parents and students of the District.  [See FD and the 
student handbook.] 

 
5. Pursue ongoing, specialized training in the management of 

food allergies in the school setting. 
 

6. Ensure specialized training is received by any other em-
ployees responsible for development, implementation, and 
monitoring of the District’s FAMP. 

 
7. Coordinate the general food allergy awareness training to 

employees.  See TRAINING, below. 
 

8. Develop general strategies for reducing exposure to common 
food allergens at District facilities and activities.  See ENVI- 
RONMENTAL CONTROLS, below. 

 
9. Ensure that employees and other individuals supervising a 

student with a diagnosed severe food allergy receive training, 
as necessary, regarding implementation of the student’s 
FFAP, EAP, IHP, and/or Section 504 plan, as applicable, and 
on specific strategies to reduce the risk of the student’s ex-
posure to the diagnosed allergen. 

 
10. Develop procedures related to student self-administration of  

allergy medicine, including epinephrine auto-injectors pre-
scribed to a student.  [See FFAC] 

 
11. Coordinate with the District’s record management officer to 

develop and implement procedures for record retention.  [See 
FD and FL] 

 
12. Collect and maintain incident reports after a student’s anaphy-

lactic reaction at school or at a school-related activity. 
 

13. Review the FAMP and related District policies and procedures 
annually, including any recommendations from campus 
FAMTs or school health advisory councils  (SHAC). 

 
 
 DATE ISSUED:  6/7/2012 
UPDATE 94 
FFAF(LOCAL)           3 of 8 
 

116



Lamar CISD 
079901 
 
WELLNESS AND HEALTH SERVICES               FFAF 
CARE PLANS              (LOCAL) 
 
 
FOOD ALLERGY  The District’s FAMP will include the following components: 
MANAGEMENT PLAN  
      GENERAL  
      PROCEDURES  The District will provide specialized training to employees who 
            TRAINING  are responsible for the development, implementation, and moni- 

toring  of the FAMP. 
 
In addition, the District will provide general food allergy aware-
ness training addressing: 
 
1. The FAMP and applicable District policies and procedures; 
 
2. General strategies to reduce the risk of exposure to common 

food allergens; 
 

3. Signs and symptoms of food allergies; 
 

4. Emergency response in the event of an anaphylactic reaction 
at school or at a school-related activity; and  

 
5. Bullying awareness and response.  [See FFI] 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL  The District’s general procedures to reduce the risk of exposure 
CONTROLS   to common food allergens will include: 
 

1. Limiting, reducing, and/or eliminating food from classroom(s) 
and other learning environments used by students diagnosed 
with food allergies who are at risk for anaphylaxis. 

 
2. Implementing appropriate cleaning protocols in the school, 

with special attention to identified high-risk areas. 
 

3. Posting visual reminders promoting food allergy awareness. 
 

4. Educating students about not trading or sharing food, snacks, 
drinks, or utensils. 

 
5. Implementing appropriate risk reduction strategies for high-

risk areas in the school, including, but not limited to, the cafe-
teria, classroom(s), and common areas; the school bus; extra-
curricular activities; field trips; school-sponsored activities; 
and before- and after-school activities. 

 
 
 
DATE ISSUED:  6/7/2012 
UPDATE 94 
FFAF(LOCAL)           4 of 8 
 

117



Lamar CISD 
079901 
 
WELLNESS AND HEALTH SERVICES               FFAF 
CARE PLANS              (LOCAL) 
 
 
INFORMATION  The District will use the following methods for requesting 
REQUEST   specific allergy information from the parent of a student with a 

diagnosed food allergy.  [See FD] 
 
1. Provide parent/guardian a student emergency card. 
 
2. Provide parent/guardian a Life Threatening Allergy Action 

Plan, as applicable. 
 

REVIEW   The FAMP and related District policies will be reviewed at least 
annually by the District Food Allergy Coordinator. 

 
STUDENTS AT RISK  When a student is identified as having a severe food allergy, the  
FOR ANAPHYLAXIS campus nurse will, as applicable, request that the parent provide 
IDENTIFICATION the following documents completed by a physician or other 

licensed health-care provider: 
 
1. The Life Threatening Allergy Action Plan 
 
2. If the parent is requesting meal substitutions or modifications, 

the Statement Regarding Meal Substitutions or Modifications. 
 

3. The Authorization for Self-Administration of Asthma and/or 
Anaphylaxis Medication form. 

 
4. The Request for the Administration of Medication at School 

form. 
 

5. Additional information regarding the signs and symptoms of 
an anaphylactic reaction that the student might experience. 

 
The campus nurse will use documents completed by the phy-
sician or other licensed health-care provider to develop an IHP for 
the student, if necessary. 

 
      ELIGIBILITY FOR Upon receipt of the identification information above, a student 
      ACCOMMODATIONS with a disability who is thought to be in need of special education 
      UNDER FEDERAL and related services will be referred for formal evaluation in ac- 
      LAW   cordance with law.  [See EHBAA(LEGAL)] 
 

A Section 504 committee will convene to determine if accom-
modations, including substitutions and other school support 
services, are necessary for the student to receive a free 
appropriate public education (FAPE) under Section 504 of the Re-
habilitation Act.  If the committee determines that the student  

 
DATE ISSUED:  6/7/2012 
UPDATE 94 
FFAF(LOCAL)           5 of 8 

118



 
Lamar CISD 
079901 
 
WELLNESS AND HEALTH SERVICES               FFAF 
CARE PLANS              (LOCAL) 
 

needs these accommodations to participate successfully and 
safely in the learning environment, the committee will develop a  
Section 504 plan.  [Also see FB] 
 
To the extent the use of epinephrine for a food allergy is not a 
required service or support addressed in a student’s Section 504 
plan or individualized education program (IEP), a FAAP, EAP, or 
IHP does not constitute a service or accommodation under 
Section 504 or the individuals with Disabilities Education Act 
(IDEA). 

 
      POST-   The campus nurse will meet with the student and parent to re- 
      IDENTIFICATION  view the documentation and to develop: 
 

1. Specific strategies to reduce the student’s risk of exposure to 
the diagnosed allergen: 

 
2. Procedures related to the student’s self-administration of his 

or her prescribed epinephrine auto-injector, if applicable; 
 [See FFAC] 

 
3. Procedures for when the student is not able to self-administer 

anaphylaxis medication; and, 
 
4. Emergency procedures that will be implemented in the event 

of an anaphylactic reaction at school or at a school-related 
activity. 

 
      NOTIFICATION  As necessary and in compliance with the Family Educational  
      AND TRAINING  Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and District policy [see FL], noti- 

fication will be provided to staff, classmates, parents, volunteers, 
and substitutes of a student with a diagnosed severe food allergy 
and the campus nurse will provide training addressing: 
 
1. General and specific strategies to reduce the student’s risk of 

exposure to the diagnosed allergen; 
 
2. Signs and symptoms of the food allergy; and  

 
3. Emergency response in the event of the student’s 

anaphylactic reaction at school or at a school-related activity. 
 

      REVIEW   Individual care plans and  procedures will be reviewed by the 
campus nurse periodically and after a student’s anaphylactic 
reaction at school or at a school-related activity. 

 
DATE ISSUED:  6/7/2012 
UPDATE 94 
FFAF(LOCAL)           6 of 8 

119



Lamar CISD  
079901 
 
WELLNESS AND HEALTH SERVICES               FFAF 
CARE PLANS              (LOCAL) 
 
 
      AFTER AN  After a student’s anaphylactic reaction at school or a school- 
      ANAPHYLACTIC  related activity, the campus nurse should submit an incident re- 
      REACTION  port to the District coordinator, identifying: 
 
            REPORTS  1. If known, the source of allergen exposure; 
 

2. Emergency action taken, including whether an epinephrine 
auto-injector was used and whether the student or a staff 
member administered the epinephrine; and  

 
3. Any recommended changes to procedures; 

 
           RESPONSE  After a student’s anaphylactic reaction, the campus nurse will: 
 

1. Meet with school staff to review administrative procedures. 
 
2. Provide to parents of other classroom students factual infor-

mation that complies with FERPA and District policy and does 
not identify the individual student. 

 
3. If the allergic reaction is thought to be from food provided by 

the school food service, work with the school food service de-
partment to ascertain what potential food item was served/ 
consumed and how to reduce risk in the cafeteria by review-
ing food labels, minimizing cross-contamination, and other 
strategies. 

 
4. Review the Life Threatening Allergy Action Plan and IHP, as 

applicable, and any other elements of the care plan to address 
any changes needed or made by the student’s health-care 
provider. 

 
5. If an epinephrine auto-injector was used during the reaction, 

ensure that the parent/guardian replaces it with a new one. 
 

If applicable, the Section 504 committee will convene to review 
the student’s Section 504 plan. 

 
STUDENT HEALTH  If required for the student to remain in the school setting, an IHP 
PLANS FOR OTHER  will be implemented. 
MEDICAL CONDITIONS 

If applicable, a student’s IHP must be coordinated with his or her 
Section 504 plan. 
 

 
DATE ISSUED:  6/7/2012 
UPDATE 94 
FFAF(LOCAL)           7 of 8 
 

120



Lamar CISD  
079901 
 
WELLNESS AND HEALTH SERVICES               FFAF 
CARE PLANS              (LOCAL) 
 

 
________________________________________________________ 

 
NOTE:   See FB for information regarding the application of    

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act to students who 
qualify for an IHP. 

 
Information and procedures related to special health-care 
plans can be found at FFAF(LEGAL) and in Chapter 7 of 
the TDSHS Texas Guide to School Health Programs at  
http://www.dshs.state.tx.us/schoolhealth/shpguide/chap7.
pdf. 

    ________________________________________________________ 
 
 
DISTRIBUTION  Information regarding this policy and the District’s food allergy  

management plan shall be distributed annually in the student 
handbook and made available at each campus. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DATE ISSUED:  6/7/2012 
UPDATE 94 
FFAF(LOCAL)           8 of 8 
 

121

http://www.dshs.state.tx.us/schoolhealth/shpguide/chap7.pdf
http://www.dshs.state.tx.us/schoolhealth/shpguide/chap7.pdf


CONSIDER APPROVAL OF MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH WILLIAM 
SMITH SR., TRI-COUNTY CHILD DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL, INC. AND FORT BEND 

COUNTY 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Board of Trustees approve the memorandum of understanding between the 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District and the William Smith Sr., Tri-County 
Child Development Council, Inc. and Fort Bend County for Head Start services. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIOINALE: 
The collaboration between Lamar CISD and Head Start will provide an opportunity for a 
full day of Pre-Kindergarten instruction for identified four-year old Lamar CISD students 
at the Juan Seguin Early Childhood Center. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
Lamar CISD will take the following actions in an effort to provide educational and family 
services to pre-school age children in the community: 
 

 Provide 10 classrooms and four office spaces for Head Start employees 

 Provide Special Education services to Head Start students as needed  

 Provide parenting training and literacy classes for parents 
 

William Smith Sr., Tri County Child Development Council will: 
 

 Provide instructional services to eligible Head Start students 

 Provide a nurse, family and community engagement staff, and mental health and 
disabilities staff 

 
Fort Bend County will: 
 

 Provide for the purchase and installation of playground equipment 

 Provide a fence for the playground area 

 Provide Head Start classroom supplies and equipment to operate the center 
 
 
Submitted by:  Laura Lyons, Executive Director of Elementary Education 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

9.B.#13. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JULY 17, 2012 

122



 

 

Order on the Interlocal Project Agreement 

LCISD Playground 

1 

STATE OF TEXAS   § 

     § KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

COUNTY OF FORT BEND   § 

 

INTERLOCAL PROJECT AGREEMENT 
 

This Interlocal Project Agreement (“Project Agreement”), is made and entered into 

pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code between 

Fort Bend County, Texas, (“County”) a body corporate and politic, acting by and through its 

Commissioners Court and Lamar Consolidated Independent School District, acting by and 

through its Board of Trustees (“LCISD.”)  

In consideration of the foregoing and further consideration of the mutual promises, 

covenants and conditions herein, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 332.021 of the Texas Local Government Code, County 

and LCISD may jointly, by agreement, establish, provide, maintain, construct, and operate 

playgrounds, recreation centers, athletic fields, swimming pools, and other park or recreational 

facilities located on property owned or acquired by either political subdivision; and 

WHEREAS, County and LCISD desire to provide a playground and related items for use 

of the Head Start program held at LCISD; and  

WHEREAS, County and LCISD have entered into a Primary Interlocal Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, County and LCISD find that this Agreement serves a public purpose. 

 

I. 

BASIC TERMS 

A. This Project Agreement is entered into pursuant to the Primary Interlocal Agreement 

(“Primary Agreement”) previously agreed to by the parties on October 9, 2007. The 

terms of that Primary Agreement are incorporated into this Project Agreement by 

reference for all purposes as if they were set forth herein word for word. 

B. County, by and through its Commissioners Court, hereby affirmatively finds that Fort 

Bend County will receive a benefit as the result of this Project. 

C. County, by and through its Commissioners Court, hereby affirmatively finds that the 

Project serves a public purpose. 

D. County, by and through its Commissioners Court, hereby affirmatively finds that County 

is specifically authorized by law to individually and independently construct the Project 

on its own. 

E. LCISD hereby affirmatively finds that LCISD is specifically authorized by law to 

individually and independently construct the Project on its own. 

F. County and LCISD agree that, in performing the governmental functions contemplated in 

this Agreement or in paying for the performance of those governmental functions, each 

party will make that performance or those payments from current revenues legally 

available to that party. 

123



 

 

Order on the Interlocal Project Agreement 

LCISD Playground 

2 

G. County and LCISD affirmatively find that the performance of this Agreement is in the 

common interest of both parties, that undertaking this Agreement will benefit the public, 

that the proposed arrangements serve the interest of efficient and economical 

administration of the State Government, and that the division of costs associated with the 

Project fairly and adequately compensate the performing party for its services or 

functions performed under this Agreement. 

H. County and LCISD agree that the Project will be open and available to the public when 

not in use by Head Start. 
 
 

II. 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this Project is to provide playground equipment, fencing and a covered area for 
use of the WILLIAM SMITH SR., TRI COUNTY CHIILD DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL INC., 
a non-profit, Texas corporation, hereinafter referred to as “Head Start” at the Juan Seguin Early 
Childhood Center (“Project Site”), located on an LCISD Campus in Fort Bend County, Texas, 
hereinafter referred to as “the Project.”  This Agreement shall be considered as an in-kind 
contribution for the benefit of Head Start. 
  

III. 

SCOPE OF WORK 

COUNTY’S RESPONSIBILITIES: 

A. County agrees to provide, at its sole expense, certain playground equipment, fencing and 

a covered area at the Project Site, and certain furniture for the use of Head Start, in an 

amount not-to-exceed $200,000, including labor costs. 

B. County shall solicit bids or proposals of best value for the Project in accordance with the 

usual and customary procedures of the County and the Texas statutes.  It is expressly 

agreed and understood that County reserves the right to reject any and all bids or 

proposals.  In such event, County, in its discretion, may either re-advertise for bids 

pursuant to the same understanding with regard to rejection of bids or terminate this 

Agreement as hereinafter provided.  The County’s determination of the bidder who 

submits the bid or proposal of best value for the Project shall be final and conclusive. 

C. County will insure the playground equipment, fencing and cover against vandalism 

and/or theft up to a limit of $100,000.   

D. County and LCISD shall work jointly on the design of the Project.  However, any final 

determination on the purchase or installation Project shall lie solely with County, with 

input from Head Start. 

E. County shall be the owner of the furniture purchased by County and used by Head Start 

at the Project Site and LCISD shall relinquish possession of the furniture to County upon 

termination of this Agreement.   

LCISD’S RESPONSIBILITIES: 

F. LCISD agrees to provide the location for the Project, include an indoor area for use by 

Head Start.   

G. LCISD agrees to provide routine maintenance and repairs after installation by County. 

H. LCISD will coordinate the efforts of County for scheduling purposes.    LCISD will 

furnish the Project Site in a manner that will be sufficient to allow County personnel to 

work in a continuous, uninterrupted manner for installation of the Project.  

 

 

124



 

 

Order on the Interlocal Project Agreement 

LCISD Playground 

3 

 

 

IV. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

A. By entering into this Agreement, the parties do not intend to create any obligations, 

express or implied, other than those specifically set out in this Agreement. 

B. Nothing in this Agreement shall create any rights or obligations in any party who is not a 

signatory to this Agreement. 

C. LCISD and County have each sought review and approval of its respective legal counsel.   

D. The County Road Commissioner, at his sole discretion, shall decide any and all questions 

that may arise with regard to the labor and equipment necessary to complete the Project. 

E. It is expressly understood and agreed that this Agreement will have no force or effect 

until duly executed by all parties. 

F. Notices, correspondence, and all other communications shall be addressed as follows: 

 

If to Fort Bend County: 

 Fort Bend County 

 301 Jackson, Suite 719 

 Richmond, Texas 77469 

 Attn:  County Judge 
 

If to LCISD: 

 ____________________________ 

 ____________________________ 

 ____________________________ 

 ____________________________ 

 

 

V. 

TERM 

 

This Agreement shall commence on the date executed by the final party and shall remain in 

effect until terminated by any party by providing sixty (60) calendar days notice to the other 

party.   

 

 

R E M A I N D E R  O F  P A G E  I N T E N T I O N A L L Y  L E F T  B L A N K

125



 

 

Order on the Interlocal Project Agreement 

LCISD Playground 

4 

 

 

VI. 

EXECUTION 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Project Agreement on the dates 

indicated. 

 

FORT BEND COUNTY: 

 

 

_________________________________________  ____________________________ 

Robert Hebert, Fort Bend County Judge   Date 
 

Attest: 

 

_________________________________________  

Dianne Wilson, Fort Bend County Clerk 

 

LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

_________________________________________  ____________________________ 

         Date 

 

_________________________________________  

Printed Name, Title 

 

REVIEWED: 

 

_________________________________   

Marc Grant      

Fort Bend County Road Commissioner   

 

 
AUDITOR'S CERTIFICATE 

I hereby certify that funds are available from current revenues legally available in the amount of 

$______________ to accomplish and pay the obligation of Fort Bend County under this Project 

Agreement. 

 

___________________________________ 

Ed Sturdivant, Fort Bend County Auditor 

 
LCISD/Head Start Interlocal Agreement.2012 

126



 
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT FOR LAMAR CISD WORKER’S 
COMPENSATION THIRD PARTY ADMINISTRATION PROGRAM  

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve renewal of Tristar Risk Management as the District’s  
Third Party Administrator (TPA) for the self-funded workers’ compensation program for the 
2012-2015 school years. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
The annual fee is estimated at $62,982 for basic administrative services and associated 
cost containment measures. Over the past six years Tristar, as the incumbent 
administrator, has demonstrated vigilant claims management practices resulting in an 
estimated four year program savings to the District of $528,620. As the administrative 
charges are comparable in nature, the District is recommending Tristar for the following 
reasons: 
 

 Demonstrated success in keeping claims costs low 
 Exceptional Service to the District 
 No transition costs 
 Cost differential is not worth employing a new administrator whose ability is 

unknown. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Since1974, Lamar Consolidated Independent School District has been required by law 
to provide worker’s compensation for all employees.  For more than 13 years, Lamar 
has been a self-funded program with a layer of stop-loss insurance. The District feels 
that a self-funded program is the most effective method of ensuring claims cost are kept 
to a minimum. 
 
 
Submitted by:   Dr. Kathleen Bowen, Executive Director of Human Resources 
      Robert V. Reim, Consultant, Robert V. Reim Company 

Trudy Harris, Assistant Director of Employee Services/Risk Mgmt. 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

9.B.#14. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JULY 17, 2012 

127



128



 
 
 

 
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE WORKER’S COMPENSATION EXCESS CARRIER 

FOR LAMAR CISD 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve renewal of the District’s Worker’s Compensation 
Excess Insurance with Safety National for the 2012-2013 with two one year renewal 
options.   
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
The worker’s compensation excess insurance covers worker’s compensation claims 
above the self-insured retention of $400,000. The annual premium for the 2012-2013 
year is $42,774. The District is recommending Safety National because of the reputation 
and the District’s past experience with Safety National.  
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Worker’s Compensation excess insurance provides coverage in excess of losses 
resulting from a catastrophic loss. The District has been fortunate in keeping losses 
below the excess coverage resulting in lower premium costs. 
 
 
 
Submitted by: Dr. Kathleen Bowen, Executive Director of Human Resources 
   Robert V. Reim, Consultant, Robert V. Reim Company 

Trudy Harris, Assistant Director of Employee Services/Risk Mgmt. 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

9.B.#15. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JULY 17, 2012 

129



130



 
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF ARCHITECT CONTRACT  

FOR THE NEW NATATORIUM 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve PBK Architects for the design of the new district 
Natatorium and allow the Superintendent to begin contract negotiations.   
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
On November 8, 2011, a bond referendum was approved that included a new district 
Natatorium. The Board Facilities Committee, the administration, and the program 
manager (Gilbane) recommend that contract negotiations begin immediately with PBK 
Architectsfor the design and construction of a new district Natatorium.   
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Upon approval PBK Architects will begin the process of design for a new district 
Natatorium. 
 
 
 
Submitted by:  J. Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
    Ed Bailey, Gilbane 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

 

9.B.#16. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JULY 17, 2012 

131



 
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF ARCHITECT CONTRACT 

FOR THE NEW AGRICULTURE FACILITY 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve VLK Architects for the design of the new district 
Agriculture Facility and allow the superintendent to begin contract negotiations.   
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
On November 8, 2011, a bond referendum was approved that included a new district 
Agricultural Facility. The Board Facilities Committee, the administration, and the 
program manager (Gilbane) recommend that contract negotiations begin immediately 
with VLK Architects for the design and construction of a new district Agricultural Facility.   
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Upon approval VLK Architects will begin the process of design for a new district 
Agricultural Facility. 
 
 
 
Submitted by:  J. Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
    Ed Bailey, Gilbane 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

 

9.B.#17. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JULY 17, 2012 

132



 
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF WASTEWATER CONTRACT BETWEEN LAMAR CISD 
AND FORT BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 146 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of trustees approve a wastewater contract with Fort Bend County 
Municipal Utility District No 146 (MUD #146) for the new Judge James C. Adolphus 
Elementary School. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
This contract will provide water and wastewater to the new Judge James C. Adolphus 
Elementary School (Elem. #22).  Lamar CISD purchased this property in April 2010 and 
the MUD #146 reserved capacity for the proposed new elementary school.  Lamar CISD 
will pay a Pro Rata Share of the water, wastewater, and detention facilities in the 
amount of $268,321.21 this is the equivalent of 25 residential connections in the Long 
Meadow Farms Subdivision. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
This contract with Fort Bend County MUD #146 will supply water and wastewater to the 
new Judge James C. Adolphus Elementary School.   
 
 
 
Submitted by:  J. Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
    Ed Bailey, Gilbane 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

 

9.B.#18. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JULY 17, 2012 

133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF UTILITY EASEMENT  
AT JOE HUBENAK ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Board of Trustees approve the utility easement for the Joe Hubenak 
Elementary School campus. 
 

IMPACT/RATIONALE: 

The Fort Bend Municipal Utility District No. 133 is requesting this easement to provide 
utilities to the expansion of the Lakes of Bella Terra Subdivision behind the Hubenak 
Elementary School campus. This will be a 7 foot easement running across the north 
property line for 620.25 feet. Fort Bend MUD #133 provides water and waste water to 
Joe Hubenak Elementary School.  This utility easement will allow Fort Bend MUD to 
provide utilities to the new expansion section of The Lakes of Bella Terra Subdivision. 
 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

Upon approval Fort Bend Municipal Utility District No. 133 will be granted a seven (7) 
foot utility easement along the northern property line on the Joe Hubenak Elementary 
School campus.  
 
 
Submitted by:  J. Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations  
    Ed Bailey, Gilbane 
 

Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

9.B.#19. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JULY 17, 2012 

176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



 

 

 

 

INFORMATION ITEM: FREEZING OF NEW INTRA-DISTRICT/INTER-DISTRICT 
TRANSFER REQUESTS TO BOWIE, RAY, AND TRAVIS ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS 

A freeze has been placed for new intra-district/inter-district transfer requests at the 
following schools for the 2012-2013 school year: Bowie, Ray, and Travis 
Elementary Schools.  It is noted that the freeze on the intra-district/inter-district 
transfers would not include: (1) Students who are currently transferred into a 
school; (2) siblings of students currently transferred into a school; and (3) children 
of district employees. The exception being if the elementary level enrollment 
exceeds the 22-1 average capacity at individual grade levels that would require the 
hiring of additional staff.  Principals would examine the number of transfer 
students. The transfer may have to be rescinded. In these cases, the parents 
would be notified immediately. 
 
 
 
Resource Person:  Laura Lyons, Executive Director of Elementary Education 

10.A.#1. – INSTRUCTIONAL 
BOARD REPORT 

JULY 17, 2012 

184



 
INFORMATION ITEM: 2013 GRADUATION  

 
LCISD high schools will hold their Graduation ceremonies on May 31 and June 1, 2013 
at the Merrill Center in Katy. With the graduation of the first senior class at George 
Ranch High School, the District has moved to four ceremonies over a two day period. 
The Merrill Center has been reserved for a graduation ceremony on Friday, May 31, 
2013 to begin at 7:30 p.m., and on Saturday, June 1, 2013, for ceremonies to begin at 
10:00 a.m., 2:00 p.m., and 6:00 p.m. 
 
Our regular rotation of ceremonies would have Terry High School first in 2013, followed 
by Lamar Consolidated High School, and Foster High School. With the addition of 
George Ranch High School, and the availability of a Friday night ceremony time, 
Administration proposes the following schedule for 2013 Graduation ceremonies: 
 
Friday, May 31, 2013  7:30 PM - Terry High School 
 
Saturday, June 1, 2013          10:00 AM - George Ranch High School 
     2:00 PM - Lamar Consolidated High School 
     6:00 PM - Foster High School 
 
There are several reasons for this proposed order: 
 

1. Allow Terry High School to remain the first ceremony for 2013 
2. Allow George Ranch High School Pro-Grad committee most of Saturday to 

complete their preparations for their first Pro-Grad event 
3. Order the graduation rotation so that there is a larger graduation class ceremony 

in between two smaller graduation class ceremonies should the need arise to 
return to one day ceremonies 

4. Disrupt as few family plans as possible 
 
 
Resource Person: Dr. Walter Bevers, Executive Director of Secondary Education 

10.B.#1. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JULY 17, 2012 

185



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INFORMATION ITEM: FIRST READING BOARD POLICIES 
 
 
Attached for review are local policies for first reading: 
 

• CDA(LOCAL)   Other Revenues:  Investments 
• GKD(LOCAL)   Community Relations:  Non-School Use of School Facilities 
• GKDA(LOCAL)   Community Relations:  Non-School Use of School Facilities 

 
Local policies are customized to provide a procedure or guideline to enforce the legal 
policies and district guidelines. 
 
 
 
Resource Person: Dr. Thomas Randle 
 
 

10.B.#2. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JULY 17, 2012 

186



LAMAR CISD 
079901 
 
OTHER REVENUES:  CDA 
INVESTMENTS  (LOCAL) 

  
 1 

 
POLICY It is the policy of the District to invest public funds in a manner that 

ensures the safety of invested funds, maintains sufficient liquidity to 
provide for the daily needs of the District, and achieves maximum yield in 
relation to the risk assumed. Safety of invested principal, however, 
remains highest in priority. 

 
INVESTMENT The chief financial officer, the budget and treasury officer, and the  
AUTHORITY director of finance shall serve as the investment officers of the District and 

shall invest District funds as directed by the Board and in accordance with 
the District’s written investment policy and generally accepted accounting 
procedures. 

 
SCOPE This investment policy applies to all financial assets of the District. These 

funds are accounted for in the District's comprehensive annual financial 
report and include:  

 
 

GENERAL FUND  This fund usually includes transactions as a 
result of revenues from local maintenance 
taxes, Foundation School Program 
entitlements, and other locally generated 
sources.  

 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS  Special revenue funds are governmental 

funds used to account for the proceeds of 
specific revenue sources that are legally 
restricted to expenditures for specified 
purposes. 

 
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS A debt service fund is a governmental fund, 

with budgetary control, that must be used to 
account for general long-term debt principal 
and interest for debt issues and other long-
term debts for which a tax has been 
dedicated.   

 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS    A capital projects fund is a governmental   

fund that must be used to account, on a  
project basis, for projects financed by the 
proceeds from bond issues, or for capital 
projects otherwise mandated to be   

            accounted for in this fund.   

187



LAMAR CISD 
079901 
 
OTHER REVENUES:  CDA 
INVESTMENTS  (LOCAL) 

  
 2 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS  Internal service funds are proprietary  
                                                           funds accounted for on the accrual basis.   

 
TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS This group of funds is used to account for 

assets held by a school district in a trustee 
capacity of the District, or as an agent for 
individuals, private organizations, other 
governmental units and/or other funds.  This 
fund type consists of expendable trust funds, 
nonexpendable trust funds, pension trust 
funds and agency funds.  

 
Funds not covered by this policy are as follows: 

 
TEXAS TEACHER RETIREMENT FUND  
All employees of Lamar Consolidated Independent School District 
employed for one-half or more of the standard work load, and who are not 
exempted from membership under Texas Government Code, Title I, 
Subtitle C Section 822.002, are required to participate in the Teacher 
Retirement System of Texas (the “System”), a multiple-employer public 
employee retirement system (“PERS”).  It is a cost-sharing PERS with one 
exception - all risks and costs are not shared by the District, but are the 
liability of the State of Texas, and as such, all investments are maintained 
by the Teacher Retirement System. 

 
 
OBJECTIVE The primary objectives, in priority order, of investment activities shall be 

safety, liquidity, and yield: 
 

1. Safety 
Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program. 
Investments shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the 
preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. The objective will be to 
mitigate credit risk and interest rate risk. 
 
a. Credit Risk 
The District will minimize credit risk, which is the risk of loss due to the 
failure of the security issuer or backer, by: 

• Limiting investments to the types of securities listed in this 
Investment Policy 

188



LAMAR CISD 
079901 
 
OTHER REVENUES:  CDA 
INVESTMENTS  (LOCAL) 

  
 3 

• Pre-qualifying the financial institutions, broker/dealers, and 
advisors with which the District will do business in accordance 
with this Policy 

• Diversifying the investment portfolio so that the impact of 
potential losses from any one type of security or from any one 
individual issuer will be minimized. 

 
b. Interest Rate Risk 
 
To reduce exposure to changes in interest rates that could adversely affect 
the value of investments, the District shall use final and weighted-average-
maturity limits and diversification. 
 
The District shall monitor interest rate risk using weighted average 
maturity and specific identification. 
 
2. Liquidity 
The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all 
operating requirements that may be reasonably anticipated. This is 
accomplished by structuring the portfolio so that securities mature 
concurrent with cash needs to meet anticipated demands (static liquidity). 
Furthermore, since all possible cash demands cannot be anticipated, the 
portfolio should consist largely of securities with active secondary or 
resale markets (dynamic liquidity). Alternatively, a portion of the portfolio 
may be placed in money market mutual funds or local government 
investment pools which offer same day liquidity for short-term funds. 
 
3. Yield 
The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining 
a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking 
into account the investment risk constraints and liquidity needs. Return on 
investment is of secondary importance compared to the safety and 
liquidity objectives described above. The core of investments are limited 
to relatively low risk securities in anticipation of earning a fair return 
relative to the risk being assumed. Securities shall generally be held until 
maturity with the following exceptions: 
 

• A security with declining credit may be sold early to minimize 
loss of principal. 

• A security swap would improve the quality, yield, or target 
duration in the portfolio. 

189



LAMAR CISD 
079901 
 
OTHER REVENUES:  CDA 
INVESTMENTS  (LOCAL) 

  
 4 

• Liquidity needs of the portfolio require that the security be 
sold. 

 
 
FUND  Appropriate investment strategies shall be developed by fund  
STRATEGIES  category. The strategies must define the investment objectives for each 

fund type, with priority consideration being given to the suitability of the 
investment for the type of funds being invested, the preservation and 
safety of principal, liquidity, marketability, diversification, and yield. 
Investments shall be made in accordance with these objectives, and the 
maximum allowable stated maturity for any individual security may 
exceed one year provided legal limits are not exceeded. 

 
  The District shall have a similar investment strategy for each of the 

following covered funds:   

1. General fund.  
2. Special revenue fund(s)-including funds used to account for 

federal, state, and local grants, as well as the food service fund and 
the campus activity fund.  

3. Debt service fund(s).  
4. Capital project fund(s).  
5. Proprietary fund(s)-including the funds used to account for the 

workers' compensation and medical self-insurance programs.  
6. Trust and agency funds-including the student activity fund. 

 
The District shall follow the investment strategies listed below (in order of 
importance) for each covered fund:  

1. Each investment option shall be reviewed to ensure understanding 
of the suitability of the investment to the financial requirements of 
the District;  

2. Investments shall be selected that provide preservation and safety 
of invested funds;  

3. Investment strategies for all covered funds shall have as their 
objective sufficient investment liquidity to timely meet obligations. 
Maturities longer than one year are authorized provided legal 
limits are not exceeded;  

190



LAMAR CISD 
079901 
 
OTHER REVENUES:  CDA 
INVESTMENTS  (LOCAL) 

  
 5 

4. The investment shall be marketable if the need arises to liquidate 
invested funds before maturity;  

5. The investment type shall be consistent with the Board's desired 
diversification of the investment portfolio; and  

6. All invested funds of the District shall attain a rate of return 
commensurate with the District's investment risk constraints and 
the cash flow characteristics of the portfolio.  

The District shall diversify its investments in all funds by security type 
and institution. The District shall consider purchase of high quality short-
term to medium-term securities that will complement each other in a 
laddered or liability-matching portfolio structure. 

 
 
PRUDENCE Investments shall be made with judgment and care – under circumstances 

then prevailing which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence 
exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but 
for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as 
the probable income to be derived. 

 
The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the 
“prudent person” standard and shall be applied in the context of managing 
an overall portfolio.  Investment officers acting in accordance with written 
procedures and the Investment Policy and exercising due diligence shall 
be relieved of personal responsibility for an individual security’s credit 
risk or market price changes, provided deviations from expectations are 
reported in a timely fashion and appropriate action is taken to control 
adverse developments. 
 
In determining whether an investment official has exercised prudence with 
respect to an investment decision, the determination shall be made taking 
into consideration the investment of all funds over which the official had 
responsibility rather than consideration as to the prudence of a single 
investment and, whether the investment decision was consistent with the 
District’s Investment Policy and written investment procedures.  

 
ETHICS &  Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall 
CONFLICTS  refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with proper  
OF INTEREST execution of the investment program, or which could impair their ability to 

make impartial investment decisions. 

191



LAMAR CISD 
079901 
 
OTHER REVENUES:  CDA 
INVESTMENTS  (LOCAL) 

  
 6 

 
Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall sign 
annual statements agreeing to abide by this section of the Investment 
Policy and affirming no known conflicts of interest. 
 
An officer or employee involved in the investment process has a personal 
business relationship with a business organization if: 
 

• the officer or employee owns 10 percent or more of the voting 
stock or shares of the business organization or owns $5,000 or 
more of the fair market value of the business organization; 

• funds received by the officer or employee from the business 
organization exceed 10 percent of his/her gross income for the 
previous year; or 

• the officer or employee has acquired from the business 
organization during the previous year investments with a book 
value of $2,500 or more for his/her personal account. 

• the officer is related within the second degree by affinity or 
consanguinity, as determined under Chapter 573 of the Texas 
Government Code, to an individual seeking to transact 
investment business with the entity. 

 
If the investment officer has a personal business relationship with a 
business organization, a disclosure statement must be filed with the Texas 
Ethics Commission. 

 
 
AUTHORIZED From those investments authorized by law and described in 
INVESTMENTS CDA(LEGAL), the Board shall permit investment of District funds in the 

following investment types only, consistent with the strategies and 
maturities defined in this policy:  

1. Obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities; 
direct obligations of the state of Texas or its agencies; other 
obligations, the principal and interest of which are unconditionally 
guaranteed or insured by, or backed by the full faith and credit of, the 
state of Texas, the United States, or its instrumentalities, including 
obligations that are fully guaranteed or insured by the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or by the explicit full faith 
and credit of the United States; obligations of states, agencies, 
counties, cities, and other political subdivisions of any state rated as to 

192



LAMAR CISD 
079901 
 
OTHER REVENUES:  CDA 
INVESTMENTS  (LOCAL) 

  
 7 

investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm 
not less than A or its equivalent. Gov't Code 2256.009  

2. Certificates of deposit issued by a state or national bank domiciled in 
Texas, or a savings and loan association domiciled in or share 
certificates issued by a depository institution that has its main 
office or a branch office in Texas that is guaranteed or insured by the 
FDIC or its successor or the National Credit Union Share Insurance 
Fund or its successor and is secured by obligations described in item 
1 above, including mortgage-backed securities directly issued by a 
federal agency or instrumentality that have a market value of not less 
than the principal amount of the certificates or are secured in any other 
manner and amount provided by law for the deposits of the investment 
entity. Gov't Code 2256.010 In addition, certificates of deposit 
obtained through a depository institution that has its main office or a 
branch office in Texas and that contractually agrees to place the funds 
in federally insured depository institutions in accordance with 
conditions prescribed in Gov’t Code 2256.010(b). 

In addition to the authority to invest funds in certificates of deposit 
under the previous section, an investment in certificates of deposit 
made in accordance with the following conditions is an authorized 
investment under Government Code 2256.010: 

a. The funds are invested by the District through a broker that 
has its main office or a branch office in this state and is 
selected from a list adopted by the District as required by 
Government Code 2256.025, or a depository institution that 
has its main office or a branch office in this state and that is 
selected by the District; 

b. The broker or depository institution selected by the District 
arranges for the deposit of the funds in certificates of deposit 
in one or more federally insured depository institutions, 
wherever located, for the account of the District; 

c. The full amount of the principal and accrued interest of each 
of the certificates of deposit is insured by the United States 
or an instrumentality of the United States; and 

d. The District appoints the depository institution selected by 
the District, an entity described by Government Code 
2257.041(d), or a clearing broker-dealer registered with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission and operating 
pursuant to Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c3-

193



LAMAR CISD 
079901 
 
OTHER REVENUES:  CDA 
INVESTMENTS  (LOCAL) 

  
 8 

3 (17 C.F.R. Section 240.15c3-3) as custodian for the District 
with respect to the certificates of deposit issued for the 
account of the District entity. 

Gov’t Code 2256.010(b) 

3. Fully collateralized repurchase agreements that have a defined 
termination date, are secured by a combination of cash and 
obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities, 
require the securities being purchased by the District or cash held 
by the District to be are pledged to the District, held in the District's 
name, and deposited with a third party selected and approved by the 
investment committee, and placed through a primary government 
securities dealer, as defined by the Federal Reserve or a bank 
domiciled in Texas. Gov't Code 2256.011  

The District shall have a master repurchase agreement signed with the 
bank or dealer with whom all repurchase agreements are traded.  

4. Commercial paper that has a stated maturity of 270 days or fewer from 
the date of issuance and is rated not less than A1-1 or P-1 or an 
equivalent rating by at least two nationally recognized credit rating 
agencies or by one nationally recognized credit rating agency provided 
the commercial paper is fully secured by an irrevocable letter of credit 
issued by a bank organized and existing under U.S. law or the law of 
any state; and to the extent that commercial paper is held through an 
investment pool and not as an individual issue through the District. 
Gov't Code 2256.013 

5. No-load money market mutual funds that are regulated by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission, have a dollar-weighted average 
stated maturity of 90 days or fewer, are invested exclusively in 
obligations described by items 1-4 above, and include in their 
investment objectives the maintenance of a stable net asset value of $1 
for each share. Investments in mutual funds shall be limited to the 
percentages authorized by Government Code 2256.014(c). Gov't Code 
2256.014  

 
6. A public funds investment pool meeting the requirements of 

Government Code 2256.016, are rated no lower than AAA or an 
equivalent rating by at least one nationally recognized rating service, 
and are authorized by resolution or ordinance by the Board. In 
addition, a local government investment pool created to function as a 

194



LAMAR CISD 
079901 
 
OTHER REVENUES:  CDA 
INVESTMENTS  (LOCAL) 

  
 9 

money market mutual fund must mark its portfolio to the market daily 
and, to the extent reasonable possible, stabilize at $1.00 net asset 
value. Gov't Code 2256.016 

 
7. Guaranteed investment contracts that have a defined termination date 

and are secured by obligations described by Government Code 
2256.09(a)(1), excluding those obligations described by Government 
Code 2256.09(b), in an amount at least equal to the amount of bond 
proceeds invested under the contract; such obligations must be pledged 
to the District and held in the District's name with an approved third 
party. Gov't Code 2256.015 

 
Corporate bonds are not an eligible investment for a public funds 
investment pool.  Gov’t Code 2256.0204(g) 

 
AUTHORIZED The investment officers will maintain a list of financial institutions,  
BROKERS/ approved by the investment committee, who are authorized to provide  
DEALERS investment services. In addition, a list will also be maintained of approved 

security brokers/dealers selected by credit-worthiness who are authorized 
to provide investment services in the state of Texas. These may include 
primary dealers or regional dealers that qualify under Securities and 
Exchange Commission Rule 15C3-1 (uniform net capital rule).  

 
All financial institutions and brokers/dealers who desire to become 
qualified bidders for investment transactions must supply the investment 
officers with the following:  

1. Audited financial statements  

2. Proof of National Association of Security Dealers certification  

3. Trading resolution  

4. Proof of registration in the state of Texas  

5. Completed broker/dealer questionnaire  

6. Certification of having read the District's investment policy  

This information will be reviewed by the investment officers and a 
recommendation for addition to the list of approved bidders will be 
submitted to the investment committee for approval.  

195



LAMAR CISD 
079901 
 
OTHER REVENUES:  CDA 
INVESTMENTS  (LOCAL) 

  
 10 

A periodic review, at least annually, of  the financial condition and 
registration of new qualified bidders will be conducted by the investment 
committee. Recommendations will be provided for consideration by the 
Board as necessary. 

 
MONITORING The investment officers shall keep the Board informed of significant 
MARKET PRICES declines in the market value of the District’s investment portfolio.  

Information sources may include financial/investment publications 
and electronic media, available software for tracking investments, 
commercial or investment banks, financial advisors, and 
representatives/advisors of investment pools or money market funds. 
Monitoring shall be done monthly or more often as economic 
conditions warrant by using appropriate reports, indices, or 
benchmarks for the type of investment. 

 
MONITORING In accordance with Government Code 2256.005(b), the investment 
RATING   officers shall develop a procedure to monitor changes investment 
CHANGES  ratings and to liquidate investments that do not maintain satisfactory 
   ratings 

 
SELECTION OF The Board of Trustees shall select and designate a depository  
DEPOSITORY institution in accordance with Legal and Local Policy CDA.  The 

depository shall be selected based upon its solvency and stability of 
leadership as well as on the services provided.  The depository shall be 
selected through a formalized bidding process in response to the District’s 
request for bid (RFB) outlining all services required.  Such services should 
provide the greatest flexibility for money management and should include 
on-line account management, positive pay accounts, purchasing card 
capabilities, and other services considered necessary by district 
management.   

 
The District shall have the discretion to determine the time span for 
rebidding the depository contract; however, a three-year period will be the 
maximum length of time between bidding. 

 
 
COMPETITIVE It is the strategy of the District to require competitive bidding for all  
BIDDING individual security purchases and sales except for:  
 

• transactions with money market mutual funds and local 
government investment pools (which are deemed to be made at 
prevailing market rates);  

196



LAMAR CISD 
079901 
 
OTHER REVENUES:  CDA 
INVESTMENTS  (LOCAL) 

  
 11 

• treasury and agency securities purchased at issue through an 
approved broker/dealer or financial institution; or  

• automatic overnight "sweep" transactions with the District 
Depository.  

 
At least three bids or offers must be solicited for all other transactions 
involving individual securities. The District’s investment advisor is also 
required to solicit at least three bids or offers when transacting trades on 
the District’s behalf. In situations where other dealers do not offer the 
exact security being offered, offers on the closest comparable investment 
may be used to establish a fair market price for the security. 

 
 
COLLATERAL The investment officers shall ensure that all District funds (principal and 

accrued interest) are fully collateralized to 110 percent or insured in one or 
more of the following manners:  

1. FDIC insurance coverage; and/or  

2. One-hundred-ten percent of the uninsured value in Obligations of the 
United States or its agencies or instrumentalities or other authorized 
securities as outlined in item 4 below.  

3. All pledged securities shall be held in safekeeping by the District, in a 
custodial account approved by the District in a third party financial 
institution, or with a Federal Reserve Bank. The third party custodian 
shall be required to issue safekeeping receipts directly to the District 
and to provide a monthly listing of each specific security, rate, 
description, maturity, CUSIP number, and other information as may be 
deemed necessary and appropriate by the District. In order to 
anticipate market changes and provide a level of additional security for 
all funds, the collateralization level required shall be 110 percent of the 
market value. The bank shall be liable for pricing securities and 
providing 110 percent collateralization.  

4. Pledged securities shall be limited to only those items which are 
specifically permitted as approved investment instruments within the 
definitions of this policy. Should a pledged security fail to meet this 
requirement, it shall be the sole responsibility of the financial 
institution to immediately, without notice from the District or cost to 
the District, replace any such nonconforming security.  

197



LAMAR CISD 
079901 
 
OTHER REVENUES:  CDA 
INVESTMENTS  (LOCAL) 

  
 12 

 
 
 
 
SAFEKEEPING Safekeeping and custody of securities and collateral shall be in  
& CUSTODY  accordance with state law.  It shall be the District’s intent to place  

securities and collateral in the possession of a third party custodian 
designated by the District where feasible, and held in the District’s name 
as evidenced by safekeeping receipts of the institution with which the 
securities are deposited. 

 
All investment transactions except investment pool funds and mutual 
funds will be executed by delivery vs. payment (DVP) to ensure that 
securities are deposited in an eligible financial institution prior to the 
release of funds.  That is, funds shall not be wired or paid until verification 
has been made that the Trustee received the securities or collateral. 
 
 

DIVERSIFICATION The District shall diversify its investments by security type and institution. 
The asset mix of the District's portfolio is expressed in terms of maximum 
commitment so as to allow sufficient flexibility to take advantage of 
market considerations within the context of this policy. The asset mix 
requirements are as follows: 

 
 
 

 Money Market Accounts  60% (maximum)  
 Certificates of Deposit  25% (maximum)  
 U.S. Treasury Obligations  100% (maximum)  
 U.S. Government Securities 100% (maximum)  
 Repurchase Agreements  15% (maximum)  
 Public Funds Investment Pools 100% (maximum)  
 Commercial Paper  25% (maximum)  
 Guaranteed Investment Contracts  60% (maximum)  

 
 
 
MAXIMUM To the extent possible, the District shall attempt to match its  
MATURITY investments with anticipated cash flow requirements. Unless matched to a 

specific cash flow, the District shall not directly invest in securities 

198



LAMAR CISD 
079901 
 
OTHER REVENUES:  CDA 
INVESTMENTS  (LOCAL) 

  
 13 

maturing more than 36 months from the date of purchase. However, 
securities with a maturity of greater than 12 months shall not exceed ten 
percent of the total portfolio, and shall be approved by the Board of 
Trustees before purchase.  

 
Bond proceeds and debt service funds may be invested in securities 
exceeding 12 months if the maturity of such investments is made to 
coincide as nearly as practicable with the expected use of the funds. 

 
 
ARBITRAGE The Tax Reform Act of 1986 provided limitations restricting the amount 

of income that could be generated from the investment of tax-exempt 
General Obligation Bond proceeds and debt service income.  The arbitrage 
rebate provisions require that the District compute earnings on investment 
from each issue of bonds on an annual basis to determine if a rebate is 
required.  To determine the District’s arbitrage position, the District is 
required to perform specific calculations relative to the actual yield earned 
on the investment of the funds and the yield that could have been earned if 
the funds had been invested at a rate equal to the yield on the bonds sold 
by the District.  The rebate provision states that periodically (not less than 
once every five years, and not later than sixty days after the maturity of 
the bonds), the District is required to pay the U.S. Treasury a rebate of 
excess earnings based on the District being in a positive arbitrage position.  
The Tax Reform restrictions require precision in the monitoring and 
recording of investments as a whole, and particularly as relates to yields 
and computations so as to ensure compliance.  Failure to comply can 
dictate that the bonds become taxable, retroactively from the date of 
issues. 

 
The District’s investment position relative to arbitrage is the continued 
pursuit of maximizing the yield on applicable investments while ensuring 
the safety of capital and liquidity.  It is a fiscally sound position to 
continue maximization of yield and rebate excess earnings, if necessary. 

BENCHMARK The District's investment strategy is a passive one, in that the majority of 
securities shall be purchased and held to maturity. Additionally, cash 
inflows and outflows shall be monitored daily. Given this strategy, the 
basis used by the investment officers to determine whether market yields 
are being achieved shall be the 2-Year U.S. Treasury Bill and the average 
Fed Funds rate.  

 
INTERNAL  The investment portfolio, as well as compliance with this policy, shall  

199



LAMAR CISD 
079901 
 
OTHER REVENUES:  CDA 
INVESTMENTS  (LOCAL) 

  
 14 

CONTROL be reviewed quarterly by the investment committee and annually by the 
District's external auditor in conjunction with the annual audit of the 
District's financial statements. 

 
 
INVESTMENT The investment committee shall review the investment strategies  
COMMITTEE annually and make recommendations for revision as necessary. The 

investment committee includes, but is not limited to, the superintendent, 
the chief financial officer, the director of finance, the budget and treasury 
officer, the financial advisor, board financial audit committee (non-
voting), and up to two investment bankers. 

 
 
QUALITY OF Designated investment officers of the District shall participate in  
INVESTMENT periodic training through courses and seminars offered by  
MANAGEMENT professional organizations, associations, and other independent sources 

approved by the investment committee to ensure the quality and capability 
of investment management in compliance with the Public Funds 
Investment Act. 

 
INVESTMENT Within 12 months after taking office or assuming duties, designated 
TRAINING investment officers of the District shall attend at least one training session 

from an independent source approved either by the Board or by the 
investment committee advising the investment officers. This initial 
training must contain at least ten hours of instruction relating to their 
respective responsibilities under the Public Funds Investment Act. Gov't 
Code 2256.008(a)  

 
The investment officers must also attend an investment training session 
not less than once in a two-year period that begins on the first day of the 
District’s fiscal year and consists of the two consecutive fiscal years 
after that date, and receive not less than ten hours of instruction relating 
to investment responsibilities under the Public Funds Investment Act from 
an independent source approved by the Board or the investment committee 
advising the investment officers. If the District has contracted with another 
investing entity to invest the District's funds, this training requirement may 
be satisfied by having a Board officer attend four hours of appropriate 
instruction in a two-year period that begins on the first day of the 
District’s fiscal year and consists of the two consecutive fiscal years 
after that date. Gov't Code 2256.008(a), (b)  

200



LAMAR CISD 
079901 
 
OTHER REVENUES:  CDA 
INVESTMENTS  (LOCAL) 

  
 15 

Investment training shall include education in investment controls, 
security risks, strategy risks, market risks, diversification of investment 
portfolio, and compliance with the Government Code, Chapter 2256. Gov't 
Code 2256.008(c)  

 
REPORTING Investment performance shall be regularly monitored by investment staff 

and reported to the Board of Trustees. Month-end market prices on each 
security will be obtained by the Budget and Treasury Officer from a 
variety of nationally recognized securities databases (e.g., the Wall Street 
Journal, Bloomberg, etc.). These prices will be recorded in the District’s 
portfolio database and included in all management reports where 
necessary as well as the District’s Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report. 

 
Not less than quarterly the Investment Officers will submit to the Board of 
Trustees a written report of the status of the current investment portfolio. 
The report must meet the requirements of Chapter 2256 of the 
Government Code (Public Funds Investment Act) and: 

• describe in detail the investment position of the District on the date 
of the report; 

• be prepared jointly by all investment officers of the District; 
• be signed by each investment officer of the District; 

• contain a summary statement for each pooled fund group that 
states the beginning market value for the period, additions and 
changes to the market value during the period, and the ending 
market value for the period;  

• state the book value and market value of each separately invested 
asset at the beginning and end of the reporting period by the type 
of asset and type of fund, and type of institution; 
• percent of portfolio by type of asset, fund, and institution will 

be provided 
• state the maturity date of each separately invested asset that has a 

maturity date; 
• state the account or fund or pooled fund group for which each 

individual investment was acquired; and 

201



LAMAR CISD 
079901 
 
OTHER REVENUES:  CDA 
INVESTMENTS  (LOCAL) 

  
 16 

• state the compliance of the investment portfolio as it relates to the 
investment strategy and relevant provisions of this Policy and the 
Public Funds Investment Act. 

An independent auditor shall formally review the quarterly reports 
prepared under this section at least annually, and that auditor shall 
report the results of the review to the District Board of Trustees. 

 
 
ANNUAL  In conjunction with the annual financial audit, a compliance audit 
COMPLIANCE shall be performed which includes an audit of management  
AUDIT controls on investments and adherence to the District’s established Policy. 
 
 
INVESTMENT The District's investment policy shall be adopted by resolution of  
POLICY the Board. The policy shall be reviewed annually and approved by the  
APPROVAL Board. 
 
 
 
 

202



Lamar CISD 
079901 

CURRENT 
COMMUNITY RELATIONS                 GKD 
NONSCHOOL USE OF SCHOOL FACILITIES        (LOCAL) 
 
 
PUBLIC USE   School buildings and facilities are available to individuals and to  

civic, service, or church groups within the community during hours 
when a building is usually closed.  The base fee must be paid at the 
time of application and in accordance with rates established by the 
Board.  The following guidelines shall apply: 
 
1. Community use of the buildings or the facilities shall not interfere 

with school activities. 
 
2. Continuous rentals are allowed without undue hardship on a school 

or the District and may be terminated at any time for reasonable 
cause. 

 
3. School facilities shall not be used for money-raising projects except 

for school-related groups or other organizations and associations 
formed for the improvement and betterment of the community. 

 
[See CNB regarding non-school use of District vehicles and FNAB 
regarding student group use of school facilities] 

 
APPROVAL OF USE  1. Applications for the use of school facilities shall be originated  

with  the building principal or athletic director, as appropriate, 
and forwarded to the administrator for operations for final ap-
proval. 

 
2. New buildings or new additions are not available for use until 

they have been accepted and occupied for school purposes. 
 
3. Approval shall not be granted for any purpose that would 

damage school property or to groups that are known to have 
damaged other rented property.. 

 
4. After the application has been approved and signed by school 

officials and representatives of the organization, it becomes a 
contract with the applicant. 

 
5. Any agreement for the use of facilities may be cancelled by the 

Superintendent in favor of school activities. 
 
SUPERVISION  6. Any organization or group using school facilities shall designate  

one adult member of its group as being in charge of and re- 
sponsible for the program or activity. 

 
FEES FOR USE  7. Rental fees shall be for the period of time the facility is being 
 
 
DATE ISSUED:  10/21/2002 
LDU-42-02 
GKD(LOCAL) –X          1 of 5 

203



 
Lamar CISD 
079901 
 
COMMUNITY RELATIONS               GKD 
NONSCHOOL USE OF SCHOOL FACILITIES      (LOCAL) 
    
 

utilized by the group/organization including set-up and take-
down time if there is additional cost to the District. 

 
8. The changes for the use of buildings and custodial services 

shall be the current schedule of rental fees and custodial 
charges. 

 
9. The Use of cafeterias with kitchens shall require the employed 

services of a food service employee at an hourly rate. 
 
10. Exemption of rental fees may be approved for civic and com-

munity groups on the basis of similar charges/conditions for 
similar organizations/purposes. 

 
NO FEES   11. Facility fees shall not apply when school buildings are used as  

polling places for public elections, for precinct and county 
conventions, or for public meetings sponsored by state or local 
governmental agencies. 

 
12. Facility fees shall not apply to meetings of employee 

organizations. 
 
PRIORITIES   13. First priority for the use of school buildings shall be given to 

Schools and affiliates of the District and the buildings may be 
used without charge.  Community groups such as Boy Scouts, 
Girl Scouts, 4-H Clubs, YMCA, etc. where only a limited area of 
the building is involved and no extra fees for custodial services 
required, shall be permitted to have such meetings without 
charge.  When extra custodial service is required for such 
maps, the District shall collect a fee sufficient to pay the wages 
of same. 

 
14. Preference in the use of buildings shall be given in the following 

order: 
 

a. School activities. 
b. School and support organizations. 
c. Organizations sponsoring meetings, lectures and the like in 

the public interest. 
d. Other organizations who wish to use the accommodations 

for private or semi-private gatherings. 
 
NO REFRESHMENTS 15. No refreshments shall be allowed in the Herndon Auditorium or 

George Junior High School Forum, and the organization 
requesting the use of these facilities shall be held responsible. 

 
 
                  2 of 5 

204



Lamar CISD 
079901 
 
COMMUNITY RELATIONS               GKD 
NONSCHOOL USE OF SCHOOL FACILITIES      (LOCAL) 
 
 
SECURITY   16. The District may require a group/organization to employ super- 

visory and/or security personnel as deemed necessary by the 
District. 

 
USE OF THE   17. The use of the District’s auditoriums may require a light/sound  
AUDITORIUM AND    crew  as per the fee schedule. 
NATATORIUM 

18. The use of the Natatorium shall require the employment of 
water safety personnel as deemed necessary by the District. 

 
REQUIRED CONDUCT Organizations  using school facilities shall: 
 

1. Conduct their business in an orderly manner. 
 
2. Abide by all laws and policies, including but not limited to those 

prohibiting the use, sale, or possession of alcoholic beverages, 
illegal drugs, and firearms and the use of tobacco products on 
school property. 

 
3. Make no alteration, temporary or permanent, to school property 

without prior written consent from the Superintendent. 
 

All decorations used within the buildings must be as fire proof 
as possible and are subject to the approved of the school off-
icials.  No flame decorations or props shall be permitted, and 
no decorations shall be fastened to the walls or ceilings with 
nails, screws, scotch tape, wax, or other fasteners that will 
damage the finish of the wall. 

 
RELEASE OF LIABILITY Organizations or individuals using school facilities shall release the  

District from liability for personal injury and/or damages to personal 
property.  All groups using school facilities shall be responsible for the 
cost of damages incurred during their use. 
 
When damages occur to school facilities during building rental, groups 
that are responsible will be notified as soon as possible by certified 
mail of the damages and the cost of repair or replacement of damaged 
item(s). 

 
DISTRIBUTION OF  Written or printed materials, handbills, photographs, pictures, films, 
NONSCHOOL   tapes, or other visual or auditory materials over which the District does 
LITERATURE   not exercise control shall not be sold, circulated, or distributed by per- 

sons or groups not associated with the school or a school support 
group on any school premises in the District without permission in 
accordance with this policy. 
 
 
 
           3 of 5 

205



Lamar CISD 
079901 
 
COMMUNITY RELATIONS               GKD 
NONSCHOOL USE OF SCHOOL FACILITIES      (LOCAL) 
 

 
The District’s classrooms during the school day are provided for the 
limited purpose of delivering instruction to students in the courses and 
subjects in which they are enrolled.  Hallways in school buildings are 
provided for the limited purpose of facilitating the movement of 
students between classes and allowing access to assigned lockers.  
Classrooms and hallways shall not be used for the distribution of any 
materials over which the school does not exercise control. 
 
Each school campus shall designate an area where materials that 
have been approved for distribution, as provided below, may be made 
available or distributed to students or others in accordance with the 
time, place, and manner restrictions developed and approved by the 
campus principal.  The Superintendent shall designate appropriate 
areas and determine appropriate time, place, and manner restrictions 
regarding distribution of non-school materials at District buildings other 
than school campuses. 

    
PRIOR REVIEW  All written material over which the school does not exercise control  

and that is intended for distribution on District property shall be 
submitted for prior review according to the following procedures: 
 
1. Materials shall be submitted to the Superintendent or designee 
for review.. 
 
2. To be considered for distribution, materials shall include the 
name of the organization or individual sponsoring the distribution.. 
 
3. Using the standards below at LIMITATIONS ON CONTENT – 
the Superintendent or designee shall approve or reject submitted 
material within two school days of the time the material is received. 
 
4. The requestor may appeal the decision of the Superintendent 
or designee to the Board in accordance with GF(LOCAL), beginning at 
the appropriate level. 
 
Appropriate law enforcement officials may be called when a person 
refuses to follow the procedures for submitting materials and fails to 
leave the premises when asked.  [See GKA) 

 
LIMITATIONS ON   Non-school materials shall not be distributed if: 
CONTENT    

1. The materials are obscene, vulgar, or otherwise inappropriate 
for the age and maturity of the audience. 

 
2. The materials endorse actions endangering the health or safety 

of students. 
 
 
            4 of 5 

206



Lamar CISD 
079901 
 
COMMUNITY RELATIONS               GKD 
NONSCHOOL USE OF SCHOOL FACILITIES      (LOCAL) 
 

 
3. The distribution of such materials would violate the intellectual 

property rights, privacy rights, or other rights of another person. 
 
4. The materials contain defamatory statements about public 

figures or others. 
 
5. The materials criticize Board members or school officials or 

advocate violation of school rules and fall within the standard 
described at LIMITATIONS ON EXPRESSION at FNAA-
(LEGAL). 

 
6. The materials advocate imminent lawless or disruptive action 

and are likely to incite or produce such action. 
 
7. The materials include hate literature that scurrilously attacks 

ethnic, religious, or racial groups, and similar publications 
aimed at creating hostility and violence if they fall within the 
standard described at LIMITATIONS ON EXPRESSION at 
FNAA(LEGAL). 

 
[See CPAB regarding use of the District’s internal mail system and 
FNAA regarding distribution of non-school literature by students.] 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DATE ISSUED:  10/21/2002    ADOPTED:      5 of 5 
LDU-42-02 
GKD(LOCAL)-X 
 
 

207



Lamar CISD 
079901 

REVISED   
COMMUNITY RELATIONS                GKD 
NONSCHOOL USE OF SCHOOL FACILITIES       (LOCAL) 
 
 
SCOPE OF USE  The District shall permit non-school use of designated District  

facilities for educational, recreational, civic, or social activities 
when these activities do not conflict with school use or with this 
policy. 
 
Approval shall not be granted for any purpose that would damage  
school property or to any group that is known to have damaged 
District property or other rented property. 
 
          
 
Note:  See the following policies for other information 

regarding facilities use: 
 
• Use by employee professional organizations: 
 DGA 
 
• Use of facilities for school-sponsored and 
 school related activities:  FM 
 
• Use by non-curriculum-related student 
 groups:  FNAB 
 
• Use by District-affiliated school-support or- 
 ganizations:  GE 

 
              
 
NON-PROFIT   The District shall permit non-profit organizations to conduct fund- 
FUNDRAISING  raising events on District property when these activities do not 

conflict with school use or with this policy. 
 
FOR-PROFIT USE  The District shall not permit individuals or for-profit organizations  

to use its facilities for financial gain; however, the District shall 
permit private academic instruction, as well as public perform-
ances, recitals, or presentations so long as no admission fee is 
charged, when these activities do not conflict with school use or 
with this policy. 

 
CAMPAIGN   Except to the extent a District facility is used as an official polling 
RELATED USE  place, District facilities shall not be available for use by individ- 

uals or groups for political advertising, campaign communica-
tions, or electioneering as those terms are used in state law. 

 
 
    
 
            1 of 4 
 

208



 
Lamar CISD 
079901 

 
COMMUNITY RELATIONS                GKD 
NONSCHOOL USE OF SCHOOL FACILITIES       (LOCAL) 
 
 
SCHEDULING  Requests for non-school use of District facilities shall be con- 

sidered in the following order: 
 
1. Academic and extracurricular activities sponsored by the 

District.  [See FM] 
 
2. School and District support organizations. 
 
3. Organizations sponsoring educational meetings, lectures, 

performances and the like, so long as no admission fee is 
charged. 

 
4. All other organizations shall be considered on a first come, 

first served basis. 
 
The Superintendent shall have authority to cancel a scheduled 
non-school use if an unexpected conflict arises with a District 
activity. 

 
APPROVAL OF USE  The campus principal is authorized to give initial approval for use 

of facilities on a school campus.  The athletic director is 
authorized to give initial approval for use of District athletic facili-
ties.  The administrator for operations is authorized to give final 
approval for use of all District facilities. 

 
EXCEPTION   No approval shall be required for non-school related recreational 

use of the District’s unlocked, outdoor recreational facilities, such 
as the track, playgrounds, tennis courts, and the like, when the 
facilities are not in use by the District or for a scheduled non-
school purpose. 

 
     EMERGENCY  In case of emergencies or disasters, the Superintendent may au- 
     USE   thorize the use of school facilities by civil defense, health, or 

emergency service authorities. 
 
FACILITIES NOT  New buildings or additions are not available for use until they 
AVAILABALE   have been accepted and occupied for school purposes. 
 
USE CAFETERIAS  Use of cafeterias with kitchens shall require the employed ser- 
AND KITCHENS  vices of a food service employee at an hourly rate. 
 
USE OF AUDITORIUMS Use of the District’s auditoriums may require a light/sound crew as 
AND NATATORIUM  per the fee schedule. 
 
    No refreshments shall be allowed in the Herndon Auditorium or  
 
 
GKD(LOCAL)           2 of 4 

209



Lamar CISD 
079901 

 
COMMUNITY RELATIONS                GKD 
NONSCHOOL USE OF SCHOOL FACILITIES       (LOCAL) 
 
 

George Junior High School Forum.  Any organization requesting use 
of these facilities shall be held responsible. 
 
Use of the Natatorium shall require the employment of water safety 
personnel as deemed necessary by the District. 

 
USE AGREEMENT  Any organization or individual approved for a non-school use of  

District facilities shall be required to complete a written agree-
ment indicating receipt and understanding of this policy and any 
applicable administrative regulations, and acknowledging that the 
District is not liable for any personal injury or damages to per-
sonal property related to the non-school use. 

 
FEES FOR USE  Non-school users shall be charged a fee for the use of designated  
    facilities. 
 

Rental fees shall be for the period of time the facility is being utilized by 
the group/organization including set-up and take-down time if there is 
additional cost to the District. 
 
The Board shall establish and publish a schedule of fees based 
on the cost of the physical operation of the facilities, as well as 
any applicable personnel costs for supervision, custodial ser-
vices, food services, security and technology services. 

 
     EXCEPTIONS  Fees shall not be charged for non-school uses when: 
 

• School buildings are used as polling places for public elections, 
for precinct and county conventions, or for public meetings 
sponsored by state or local governmental agencies. 

 
• Use is by District employee professional organizations.  

[See DGA] 
 
• The primary participants are school aged children and only 

a limited area of the building is involved so that no extra 
fees for custodial services are required.  When extra custo-
dial service is required for such meetings, the District shall 
collect a fee sufficient to pay the wages of same. 

 
Exemption of rental fees may be approved for other civic and com-
munity groups on the basis of similar charges/conditions for similar 
organizations/purposes. 

 
SECURITY   The District may require a group/organization to employ supervisory  

and/or security personnel as deemed necessary by the District. 
 

 
        3 of 4 

210



Lamar CISD 
079901 

 
COMMUNITY RELATIONS                GKD 
NONSCHOOL USE OF SCHOOL FACILITIES       (LOCAL) 
 
 
RELEASE OF LIABILITY Organizations or individuals using school facilities shall release the  

District from liability for personal injury and/or damages to personal 
property. 

 
REQUIRED CONDUCT Persons or groups using school facilities shall: 
 

• Designate one adult member of the group to be in charge 
of and responsible for the program or activity. 

 
• Conduct business in an orderly manner. 
 
• Abide by all laws and policies, including but not limited to those  

prohibiting the use, sale, or possession of alcoholic beverages, 
illegal drugs, firearms, and the use of tobacco products on 
school property.  [See GKA] 

 
• Make no alteration, temporary or permanent, to school property 

without prior written consent from the Superintendent. 
 

All groups using school facilities shall be responsible for the cost 
of repairing any damages incurred during the use and shall be re-
quired to indemnify the District for the cost of any such repairs. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
GKD(LOCAL)              4 of 4 

211



Lamar CISD 
079901 

ADDITION 
COMMUNITY RELATIONS               GKDA 
NONSCHOOL USE OF SCHOOL FACILITIES        (LOCAL) 
 
 
DISTRIBUTION OF  Written or printed materials, hand bills, photographs, pictures, 
NON-SCHOOL  films, tapes, or other visual or auditory materials not sponsored 
LITERATURE   by the District or by a District-affiliated school-support organi- 
PERMITTED   zation shall not be sold, circulated, distributed, or posted on any 

District premises by any District employee or by persons or 
groups not associated with the District, except in accordance 
with this policy. 
 
The District shall not be responsible for, nor shall the District 
endorse, the contents of any non-school literature distributed on 
any District premises. 
 
[See CPAB regarding use of the District’s internal mail system 
and FNAA regarding distribution of non-school literature by 
students.] 

 
LIMITATIONS ON  Non-school literature shall not be distributed on District proper- 
CONTENT   ty if: 
 

1. The materials are obscene, vulgar, or otherwise inappro-
priate for the age and maturity of the audience. 

 
2. The materials endorse actions endangering the health or 

safety of students. 
 
3. The material promotes illegal use of drugs, alcohol, or 

other controlled substances. 
 
 
4. The distribution of such materials would violate the 

intellectual property rights, privacy rights, or other rights 
of another person. 

 
5. The materials contain defamatory statements about public 

figures or others. 
 
6. The materials advocate imminent lawless or disruptive 

action and are likely to incite or produce such action. 
 
7. The materials are hate literature or similar publications 

that scurrilously attack ethnic, religious, or racial groups 
or contain content aimed at creating hostility and violence, 
and the materials would materially and substantially inter-
fere with school activities or the rights of others. 

 
8. There is reasonable cause to believe that distribution of 

the non-school literature would result in material and sub- 
 
GKDA (LOCAL)          1 of 3 

212



Lamar CISD 
079901 
 
COMMUNITY RELATIONS               GKDA 
NONSCHOOL USE OF SCHOOL FACILITIES        (LOCAL) 

 
 

stantial interference with school activities or the rights of 
others. 

 
PRIOR REVIEW  All non-school literature intended for distribution on school 

campuses or other District premises under this policy shall be 
submitted to the Superintendent for prior review in accordance 
with the following: 
 
1. Materials shall include the name of the person or organiza-

tion sponsoring the distribution. 
 
2. Using the standards found in this policy at LIMITATIONS 

ON CONTENT, the Superintendent shall approve or reject 
submitted materials within two school days of the time the 
materials were received. 

 
      EXCEPTIONS TO  Prior review shall not be required for distribution of non-school 
      PRIOR REVIEW  literature in the following circumstances: 
 

1. Distribution of materials by an attendee to other attendees 
at a school-sponsored meeting intended for adults and 
held after school hours; 

 
2. Distribution of materials by an attendee to other attendees 

at a community group meeting held in accordance with 
GKD(LOCAL) or a non-curriculum-related student group 
meeting held in accordance with FNAB(LOCAL); or 

 
3. Distribution for electioneering purposes during the time a 

school facility is being used as a polling place in accord-
ance with state law.  [See BBB] 

 
All non-school literature distributed under these exceptions shall 
be removed from District property immediately following the 
event at which materials were distributed. 
 
Even when prior review is not required, all other provisions of 
this policy shall apply. 

 
 
TIME, PLACE, AND  Each campus principal shall designate times, locations, and 
MANNER   means by which non-school literature that is appropriate for  
RESTRICTIONS  distribution, as provided in this policy, may be made available or 

distributed to students or others at the principal’s campus. 
 

 
 
GKDA(LOCAL)          2 of 3 
 

213



Lamar CISD 
079901 
 
COMMUNITY RELATIONS               GKDA 
NONSCHOOL USE OF SCHOOL FACILITIES        (LOCAL) 
 
 

The Superintendent shall designate times, locations, and means 
for distribution of non-school literature at District facilities other 
than school campuses, in accordance with this policy. 

 
VIOLATIONS OF  Failure to comply with this policy regarding distribution of non- 
POLICY   school literature shall result in appropriate administrative action, 

including, but not limited to confiscation of non-conforming 
materials and/or suspension of use of District facilities.  Appro-
priate law enforcement officials may be called if a person refuses 
to comply with this policy or fails to leave the premises when 
asked.  [See GKAK] 

 
APPEALS   Decisions made by the administration in accordance with this 

policy may be appealed in accordance with the appropriate 
District complaint policy.  [See DGBA or GF] 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
GKDA(LOCAL)            3 of 3 

214



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INFORMATION ITEM:  TAX COLLECTION REPORT 
(AS OF JUNE 30, 2012) 

 
 
 
Exhibit "A"  gives the LCISD collections made during the month of June 30, 2012. 
 
Exhibit "B" gives the total LCISD collections made this school year from September 1, 

2011 through June 30, 2012. 
 
Exhibit "C" shows the LCISD collections made month-by-month of the 2011-12 roll as 

compared to prior years.  Through June 30, 2012, Lamar had collected  
98.3% of the 2011-12 roll. 

 
Exhibit "D" shows the total collections made as compared to the amount that was 

budgeted for 2011-2012. 
 
Exhibit "E" shows the LCISD tax collection analysis for the last six years. 
 
 
 
Resource Person:  Jill Ludwig, Chief Financial Officer 
 

10.B.#3. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JULY 17, 2012 

215



Exhibit ALamar Consolidated ISD
Tax Collections

June  2012

General Fund Debt Service

Taxes Penalty & Collection Total General Fund P & I & Debt Service P & I &

Year Paid Interest Fees Payments Taxes Paid Collection Fees Taxes Paid Collection Fees

11 655,131.99$                 90,953.42$                 17,050.74$              763,136.15$                  480,750.74$                 83,794.11$               174,381.25$              24,210.05$                  

10 151,427.41$                 15,880.07$                 13,551.31$              180,858.79$                  113,197.46$                 25,422.01$               38,229.95$                4,009.37$                    

09 131,096.90$                 5,040.82$                   3,321.40$                139,459.12$                  103,207.59$                 7,345.56$                 27,889.31$                1,016.66$                    

08 106,358.45$                 1,890.07$                   1,099.43$                109,347.95$                  83,649.18$                   2,607.56$                 22,709.27$                381.94$                       

07 82,735.00$                   1,533.67$                   744.39$                   85,013.06$                    63,768.52$                   1,931.29$                 18,966.48$                346.77$                       

06 41,223.53$                   789.00$                      337.35$                   42,349.88$                    35,427.78$                   1,015.60$                 5,795.75$                  110.75$                       

05 695.76$                        568.45$                      252.84$                   1,517.05$                      602.66$                        744.40$                    93.10$                       76.89$                         

04 310.65$                        250.84$                      112.30$                   673.79$                         274.49$                        333.95$                    36.16$                       29.19$                         

03 288.76$                        242.69$                      83.87$                     615.32$                         257.86$                        299.92$                    30.90$                       26.64$                         

02 950.09$                        1,147.40$                   314.62$                   2,412.11$                      896.81$                        1,397.59$                 53.28$                       64.43$                         

01 783.07$                        1,026.84$                   271.49$                   2,081.40$                      739.35$                        1,240.62$                 43.72$                       57.71$                         

00 465.97$                        664.31$                      169.54$                   1,299.82$                      414.84$                        760.95$                    51.13$                       72.90$                         

99 1,146.73$                     1,552.98$                   404.96$                   3,104.67$                      1,084.69$                     1,862.14$                 62.04$                       95.80$                         

98 900.00$                        1,341.00$                   336.15$                   2,577.15$                      851.73$                        1,596.79$                 48.27$                       80.36$                         

97 693.25$                        1,241.07$                   290.15$                   2,224.47$                      640.92$                        1,437.56$                 52.33$                       93.66$                         

96 1,104.54$                     2,101.25$                   480.87$                   3,686.66$                      1,033.36$                     2,446.80$                 71.18$                       135.32$                       

95 643.53$                        1,298.46$                   289.56$                   2,231.55$                      610.26$                        1,520.89$                 33.27$                       67.13$                         

94 514.52$                        1,109.41$                   241.29$                   1,865.22$                      487.86$                        1,293.21$                 26.66$                       57.49$                         

93 680.06$                        1,563.20$                   336.50$                   2,579.76$                      649.74$                        1,830.01$                 30.32$                       69.69$                         

92 933.36$                        2,220.00$                   473.00$                   3,626.36$                      914.88$                        2,649.07$                 18.48$                       43.93$                         

91 1,125.62$                     2,746.45$                   560.09$                   4,432.16$                      1,095.13$                     3,232.17$                 30.49$                       74.37$                         

90 402.31$                        1,046.29$                   217.30$                   1,665.90$                      378.39$                        1,201.62$                 23.92$                       61.97$                         

89 406.87$                        1,108.05$                   227.24$                   1,742.16$                      340.57$                        1,154.72$                 66.30$                       180.57$                       

88 & prior 248.52$                        698.34$                      142.03$                   1,088.89$                      202.60$                        711.33$                    45.92$                       129.04$                       

 

Totals 1,180,266.89$              138,014.08$               41,308.42$              1,359,589.39$               891,477.41$                 147,829.87$             288,789.48$              31,492.63$                  

    

216



Exhibit BLamar Consolidated ISD
Tax Collections

September 1, 2011-August 31, 2012
(Year-To-Date)

Original Adjusted Taxes Penalty & Collection Total Total Taxes

Year Tax Adjustments Tax Paid Interest Fees Payments 6-30-12

11 132,226,942.56$             5,440,321.62$        137,667,264.18$            135,380,545.50$                  568,637.23$           76,752.31$             136,025,935.04$             2,286,718.68$              

10 1,709,271.04$                 62,984.92$             1,772,255.96$                988,197.20$                         208,607.26$           213,303.21$           1,410,107.67$                 784,058.76$                 

09 832,887.31$                    113,409.52$           946,296.83$                   389,495.71$                         91,938.99$             64,136.40$             545,571.10$                    556,801.12$                 

08 481,526.15$                    121,339.70$           602,865.85$                   233,302.49$                         42,081.31$             24,283.30$             299,667.10$                    369,563.36$                 

07 342,288.30$                    110,772.48$           453,060.78$                   153,266.58$                         19,905.80$             9,494.17$               182,666.55$                    299,794.20$                 

06 272,649.57$                    74,379.28$             347,028.85$                   109,427.38$                         12,522.38$             4,706.59$               126,656.35$                    237,601.47$                 

05 249,944.89$                    2,741.43$               252,686.32$                   33,541.34$                           10,181.30$             3,919.11$               47,641.75$                      219,144.98$                 

04 164,187.60$                    (2,449.75)$             161,737.85$                   25,868.01$                           8,823.34$               3,319.12$               38,010.47$                      135,869.84$                 

03 138,396.99$                    (3,171.31)$             135,225.68$                   11,100.97$                           7,263.97$               1,867.15$               20,232.09$                      124,124.71$                 

02 120,166.26$                    (3,112.07)$             117,054.19$                   6,639.59$                             4,833.65$               1,261.46$               12,734.70$                      110,414.60$                 

01 110,698.67$                    (17,768.28)$           92,930.39$                     6,518.87$                             5,844.47$               1,502.17$               13,865.51$                      86,411.52$                   

00 105,343.99$                    (27,923.34)$           77,420.65$                     2,898.78$                             4,075.14$               1,047.41$               8,021.33$                        74,521.87$                   

99 88,754.79$                      (13,880.72)$           74,874.07$                     3,742.26$                             5,508.79$               1,380.71$               10,631.76$                      71,131.81$                   

98 76,029.84$                      (13,777.18)$           62,252.66$                     2,833.83$                             4,466.62$               1,093.42$               8,393.87$                        59,418.83$                   

97 59,059.59$                      (3,598.39)$             55,461.20$                     1,485.73$                             2,531.11$               594.66$                  4,611.50$                        53,975.47$                   

96 59,195.77$                      (2,785.26)$             56,410.51$                     4,234.74$                             7,995.77$               1,834.58$               14,065.09$                      52,175.77$                   

95 45,570.81$                      (1,585.52)$             43,985.29$                     2,663.48$                             5,245.85$               1,185.71$               9,095.04$                        41,321.81$                   

94 36,115.39$                      (1,585.52)$             34,529.87$                     1,719.57$                             3,563.22$               779.78$                  6,062.57$                        32,810.30$                   

93 33,957.74$                      (1,203.94)$             32,753.80$                     1,793.91$                             3,997.01$               868.63$                  6,659.55$                        30,959.89$                   

92 31,726.55$                      (928.52)$                 30,798.03$                     2,183.50$                             5,005.22$               1,078.29$               8,267.01$                        28,614.53$                   

91 30,258.77$                      (19,026.19)$           11,232.58$                     2,020.44$                             4,880.31$               1,008.51$               7,909.26$                        9,212.14$                     

90 22,822.04$                      (44,165.37)$           (21,343.33)$                    1,109.65$                             2,802.85$               581.20$                  4,493.70$                        (22,452.98)$                  

89 44,731.29$                      (6,219.50)$             38,511.79$                     1,410.51$                             3,528.45$               730.54$                  5,669.50$                        37,101.28$                   

88 & prior 8,152.40$                        8,152.40$                       1,589.47$                             4,060.93$               822.07$                  6,472.47$                        6,562.93$                     

Totals $137,290,678.31 $5,762,768.09 $143,053,446.40 $137,367,589.51 $1,038,300.97 $417,550.50 $138,823,440.98 $5,685,856.89

217



Exhibit C

LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

TAX COLLECTION ANALYSIS

PERCENT Y-T-D BY MONTH

FOR CURRENT LEVY ONLY

MONTH 2011-12 2010-11 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2006-07 2005-06 2004-05 2003-04 2002-03 2001-02

SEPT 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

OCT 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.01% 0.0% 0.2%

NOV 2.6% 3.9% 1.9% 1.7% 2.8% 2.1% 1.0% 3.3% 4.0% 3.2% 4.3%

DEC 30.2% 33.3% 25.9% 35.4% 31.9% 29.7% 32.7% 16.8% 20.7% 16.9% 22.8%

JAN 82.3% 84.1% 80.7% 80.4% 59.6% 76.4% 73.6% 74.9% 69.0% 62.6% 60.0%

FEB 94.8% 94.3% 93.3% 92.8% 93.5% 93.3% 92.5% 92.3% 92.4% 91.7% 92.5%

MAR 96.4% 96.1% 95.0% 94.8% 95.1% 94.7% 94.3% 93.8% 94.0% 93.1% 93.8%

APR 97.1% 96.9% 96.0% 95.6% 95.9% 95.8% 95.2% 94.8% 94.9% 94.8% 94.9%

MAY 97.9% 97.6% 96.5% 96.4% 96.7% 96.5% 96.1% 95.5% 95.5% 95.5% 95.6%

JUNE 98.3% 98.2% 97.4% 97.2% 97.4% 97.3% 96.8% 96.4% 96.2% 96.3% 96.2%

JULY 98.6% 98.0% 97.9% 98.0% 97.8% 97.4% 97.1% 97.0% 96.9% 96.9%

AUG 98.8% 98.2% 98.2% 98.2% 98.2% 97.8% 97.5% 97.3% 97.3% 97.2%

218



Exhibit D

LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

2011-12 TAX COLLECTIONS

AS OF JUNE 30, 2012

TAX  YEAR BUDGET COLLECTIONS % OF BUDGET

LCISD TAXES SCHOOL YEAR AMOUNT 6-30-12 COLLECTED

 

2011 2011-12 $135,480,515 $135,380,546 99.93%

2010 &  Prior 2010-11 & Prior $2,950,000 $1,987,044 67.36%

TOTAL $138,430,515 $137,367,590 99.23%

219



Exhibit E

LAMAR  CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

TAX COLLECTION REPORT

AS OF JUNE 30, 2012

SCHOOL YEAR 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12

TAX YEAR 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

COLLECTION YEAR

1 Orig. Levy 107,330,019$        111,004,084$        126,505,684$        127,458,872$        129,215,668          132,226,943          

1 Collections 104,997,277$        108,651,032$        123,171,452$        128,154,416$        132,086,020          135,380,546          

Adj. To Roll     (388,332)$              (362,468)$              (1,054,535)$           2,995,248$            4,579,622              5,440,322              

2 Collections 1,285,841$            1,347,912$            1,484,532$            1,349,141$            988,197                

Adj. To Roll 54,079$                 27,409$                 (65,264)$                (117,676)$              62,985                  

3 Collections 406,776$               267,371$               248,471$               389,496$               

Adj. To Roll 110,409$               21,693$                 96$                        113,410$               

4  Collections   131,250$               136,983$               233,302$               

Adj.  To Roll 15,723$                 54,869$                 121,340$               

5 Collections 106,810$               153,267$               

Adj. To Roll 78,704$                 110,772$               

6 Collections 109,427$               

Adj. To Roll 74,379$                 

TOTAL:

COLLECTIONS 107,037,380$        110,556,564$        125,137,757$        129,893,053$        133,074,217$        135,380,546$        

ADJUSTED TAX ROLL 107,274,982$        110,856,359$        125,507,320$        130,449,854$        133,858,275$        137,667,264$        

 

BALANCE TO

BE COLLECTED 237,602$               299,794$               369,563$               556,801$               784,058$               2,286,719$            

ADJ. TAXABLE

VALUE 6,931,475,580$     8,542,855,051$     9,671,893,061$     10,052,776,501$   9,809,700,991$     9,903,763,475$     

TOTAL % COLLECTIONS 99.8% 99.7% 99.7% 99.6% 99.4% 98.3%

AS OF JUNE 30, 2012

TAX RATE 1.54765$               1.29765$               1.29765$               1.29765$               1.36455 1.39005

220



 
INFORMATION ITEM:  PAYMENTS FOR CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 

 
 

Below is a list of invoices that have been approved for payment. 
 

 
Charlie Kalkomey Surveying 
(Adolphus Elem #22)     Application # 1 $        10,500.00 
 
Drymalla Construction      
(Adolphus Elem #22)     Application # 2 $      628,531.40 
 
Drymalla Construction      
(George Ranch HS Build Out)    Application # 1 $        89,357.00 
 
Drymalla Construction      
(Polly Ryon Middle)      Application # 2 $      595,641.45 
 
Gilbane 
(2011 Bond Program)     Application # 1 $        62,497.00 
 
Gilbane 
(2011 Bond Program)     Application # 2 $        65,415.00 
 
Gilbane 
(2011 Bond Program)     Application # 3 $        46,097.00 
 
Hartfiel Architecture     
(Lamar HS – Tennis Courts)    Application # 4 $               97.50 
 
Hartfiel Architecture     
(Lamar JHS – Tennis Courts)    Application # 4 $               65.00 
 
PBK Architects  
(George Ranch HS Build Out)    Application # 1 $          5,807.50 
 
PBK Architects      
(Adolphus Elem #22 – Phase 1 – Reim)   Application # 11 $             372.19 
 
PBK Architects      
(Adolphus Elem #22 – Phase 2)    Application # 1 $        18,605.83 
 
PBK Architects      
(Adolphus Elem #22 – Phase 2)    Application # 2 $          3,721.17 
 

10.B.#4. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JULY 17, 2012 

221



 
PBK Architects  
(Natatorium)       Application # 18 $              89.67 
 
PBK Architects      
(Polly Ryon Middle –Phase 1 – Reimbursables)  Application # 9 $            276.63 
 
PBK Architects      
(Polly Ryon Middle – Phase 2)    Application # 2 $         6,169.67 
 
RDLR Architects      
(Misc. Campuses)      Application # 5 $         1,948.75 
 
Terracon   
(Adolphus Elem #22)     Application # 2 $         9,735.00 
 
Terracon   
(Polly Ryon Middle)      Application # 2 $        12,525.00 
 
Winning Way Services      
(George Ranch HS Build Out)    Application # 1 $             675.00 
 
 
Resource person: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 

222



 
 

INFORMATION ITEM:  REGION 4 MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS UPDATE 
 

This agenda item will be on the Board Agenda each month to provide updates on Region 4’s 
progress with Maintenance and Operations.  The following indicates action that has taken 
place since the last regular board meeting. 
 
Work Request Summary for June, 2012: 
 

 The Department completed 1,176 requests with 42 new requests 

 38 were closed   
 
Maintenance: 
 
The Maintenance Department assisted by: 
 

 Prepping and painting the wall in the clinic at Navarro Middle  

 Repairing the wall in room 209 at Navarro Middle  

 Repairing a shelf at Campbell Elementary 

 Replacing floor tiles at Dickinson Elementary 

 Delivering new parts for the starting blocks at the Natatorium 

 Repairing and staining backpack racks at Jane Long Elementary 

 Replacing the trim on the bookcases at LamarJunior High  

 Assembling nine tables and eleven carts at Smith Elementary 

 Replacing broken floor tiles in the cafeteria at Meyer Elementary 

 Hanging an oak literature rack and picture at Brazos Crossing  

 Repairing a natural gas piping leak at Bowie Elementary   

 Repairing a leak in the natural gas piping at Alternative Learning Center   

 Completing the retrofitting of light fixtures at the AG Barn  

 Repairing the intercom bell system at Huggins Elementary  

 Adjusting the intercom speaker volume at George Ranch High  

 Repairing the threshold at the kitchen back door at Travis Elementary  

 Repairing the fire alarm system pre alarm and smoke detector at Thomas Elementary   

 Replacing a  fire alarm system smoke detector at Foster High  

 Replacing broken door glass at Frost Elementary 

 Re-nailing the tin on the restroom roof at Terry High Football Field 

 Dismantling risers and delivering them to storage at George Ranch High  

 Constructing shelves with a rod for book bags in the library closet at Travis Elementary 

 Installing a new pencil sharpener in room H-103 at Lamar High  

 Repainting a wall in room H-103 at Lamar High  

 Removing a white board in room 2119 for a SmartBoard to be installed at Foster High  

 Repairing a natural gas leak at 1621 Place   

 Repairing a natural gas leak at Food Service   

 Adding electrical receptacles and a time clock on lighting in inventory area at 
Maintenance and Operations  

10.B.#5. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JULY 17, 2012 

223



 Adding electrical receptacles in the athletics area at Reading Junior High   

 Repairing the intercom system at Terry High  

 Resetting the intercom system at Velasquez Elementary  

 Repairing the hallway locker doors at Briscoe Junior High 

 Replacing fire alarm system backup batteries at George Ranch High 

 Replacing a smoke detector at Foster High  

 Scheduling annual fire alarm inspections at district facilities 

 Scheduling annual fire sprinkler inspections at district facilities  

 Scheduling gas pressure testing at district facilities 

 Coordinating facility painting projects for Alternative Learning Center, Meyer 
Elementary, Taylor Ray Elementary, Maintenance, Warehouse, and Transportation 

 
Custodial, Integrated Pest Control and Lawn Works: 
 
The Operations Department assisted by: 
 

 Mowing district-wide 

 Trimming trees district-wide 

 Repairing irrigation systems 

 Weed control at Brazos Crossing, Wessendorff Middle, George JH, and all high 
schools 

 Providing rodent control at Smith, Lamar High, and Beasley 

 Assisting in scheduling Gillen’s Pest Control services at: Austin, Beasley, Bowie, 
Briscoe JH, Campbell, Dickinson, Band Road, Frost, George Ranch HS, Jackson, 
Pink, Reading JH, Seguin, Velasquez, and Wertheimer Middle 

 Percentage of the summer cleaning process complete: 
o Cleaning walls: 15%  
o Scrubbing all VCT floors: 15%  
o Scrubbing all ceramic tile floors: 15% 
o Shampooing  all carpets including read around carpets and various teachers 

personal carpets: 15% 
o Cleaning all teachers & student desks, tables, chairs, cabinets etc.: 15% 
o Power washing entrances and exits of buildings: 15%   
o Power washing dumpster areas: 10% 

 Removing toys from Seguin Elementary playground 

 Delivering tables and chairs to Foster High for a job fair 

 Opening the high schools for dance recitals 

 Opening Powell Point for a church banquet  

 Opening Reading JH for Tae Kwando testing 
 
 
Resources: Kevin McKeever, Administrator of Operations 

Aaron Morgan, Interim Director of Maintenance & Operations 
  Jeff Kimble, Assistant Director of Operations 
  James Carrillo, Assistant Director (Region 4) 

224



 

 

Lamar CISD 
2011 Bond Program 

Monthly Report 

July 2012 

2006 Bond Program Projects 
 
Transportation Satellite Facility 

• Substantial completion was issued for the buildings April 30, 2012. 
• The contractor completed the FM-1093 to Bois d’Arc connector on April 

11, 2012. 
• The contractor completed the connection for the secondary drive and FM-

1093. 
• The secondary drive was substantially complete June 30, 2012. 
• Ft. Bend Fire Marshal walked the site and building May 9, 2012 and ap-

proved occupancy. 
• Projected close-out for the Satellite Transportation is August 2012. 
• LCISD continues delivery of FF & E items for the office areas and mainte-

nance building. 
• The City of Fulshear will start the annexation process for the substantially 

complete portion of the site over the next 60 days. 
 

Natatorium Phase I Renovations 
• Projected close-out is August 2012. 

 
 

2011 Bond Program Projects 
 
Adolphus Elementary 

• The sixth project meeting was held on July 03, 2012 on-site and attended 
by Gilbane, PBK, and Drymalla. 

• The final plat was signed-off by Ft. Bend County on June 5, 2012.  
• 70% percent of the electronic submittals have been approved and the gen-

eral contractor continues to forward submittals to the design team for re-
view and approval. 

• The concrete slab on grade is completed in Areas C, E, and D.  
• Placement of the storm lines continues. 
• Drilling of piers, pier caps, and grade beams in Area A are complete. 
• Placement of manholes are complete. 
• CenterPoint coordinated the power pole and transformer locations. 
• Drilling for sight light poles continues.  
• Fire line rough-in installation is complete. 
• Staff and visitor approach are being prepared for concrete. 
• Irrigation sleeves are installed. 
• Stabilization of paving areas is complete. 
• Paving areas are being set up with steel and expansion materials in prepa-

ration for concrete placement. 
• Out-fall is 100% complete.  

Transportation Satellite 

Adolphus Elementary School 

10.B.#6. - PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JULY 17, 2012 

225



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program 
Monthly Report - Executive Summary 

GILBANE 
July 2012 

2011 Bond Program Projects 
 
 
Polly Ryon Middle School 

• Site work and grading continues onsite and at connection to Reading JHS 
campus. 

• Layout and drilling of piers is complete in all areas. 
• Installation of grade beams continues in areas A and B. 
• Storm sewer installation is complete. Installation of other underground 

utilities continues.  
• Water tie-in to Reading JHS 12” main is complete. 
• Sanitary mains and manhole rough-in are complete.  
• Electrical rough-in is complete for areas A and B and has started in areas 

C and D. 
• Installation of the underground duct bank has started. 
• Plumbing rough-in is complete in areas A & B and continues in areas C 

and D. 
• Irrigation sleeves are installed. 
• Excavation for widening of bus drive is complete. 
• Excavation for driveway connections to Junior High is complete  
• Stabilization of concrete paving areas continues. 
• Drilling for site lighting poles has started. 
• TxDOT has issued a permit for the widening of the bus drive connecting 

to FM 762.   
 
 
 

George Ranch High School Build-Out 
• Electrical rough-in is complete in all areas. Electrical wiring continues. 
• Drywall is approximately 98% complete in all areas. 
• Tape and float is complete in areas L1, L2, and N1 and 90% complete in 

N2. 
• Plumbing rough-in in area N2 is 97% complete. 
• Ductwork installation continues in all areas. 
• Wall insulation and inspection are complete in all areas. 
• Fire sprinkler heads are being installed. 
• Vinyl wall covering is 90% complete in areas L1, L2, and N1. 
• Ceiling grid wire is complete in all areas. 
• Ceiling grid is installed in areas L1, L2, and N2. 
• Data wire installation is complete. 
• Smart board cabling is complete. 
• Classroom casework is installed 
• VAV boxes are installed and scheduled for startup next week. 
• VCT and base installation has started in areas L1, L2, and N1. 
• Fixtures are being installed in areas L1, L2, and N1. 
 

Polly Ryon Middle School 

GRHS Build‐Out 

226



 

 

 
 
 

Bond Program Budget 
 

 

Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program 
Monthly Report - Executive Summary 

GILBANE 
July 2012 

227


	Cover
	Agenda
	Call to order and establishment of a quorum
	Opening of meeting
	Recognitions/awards
	Texas State Solo & Ensemble Contest UIL Outstanding Performers

	Audience to patrons
	Approval of minutes
	June 19, 2012 Regular Board Meeting
	Minutes Regular Meeting June 19 2012.docx


	Board members reports
	Meetings and events

	Superintendent reports
	Meetings and events
	Information for immediate attention
	Introductions

	Public Hearing on Internet Safety Policy
	ACTION ITEMS
	Goal:  Instructional
	Consider approval of Interagency Program Agreement between Lamar CISD and the Behavior Treatment and Training Center (BTTC), Texana Center
	Agreement BTTC 2012 2013 July 2012.doc
	2012 2013 Behavior Treatment and Training Center.doc

	Consider approval of Interagency Program Agreement between Lamar CISD and Richmond State Supported Living Center (RSSLC)
	Agreement RSSLC 2012 2013 July 2012.doc
	2012 2013 RSSLC.doc

	Consider approval of secondary curriculum at-a-glances for Career and Technical Education
	july 2012 scope and seq CONSIDER APPROVAL OF SECONDARY CURRICULUM.docx

	Consider approval to purchase resource for elementary science curriculum
	Elementary Science Curriculum.doc


	Goal: Planning
	Consider ratification of Financial and Investment Reports
	Financial and Investment Reports.docx
	SCHEDULE OF JUNE 2012 DISBURSEMENTS.docx
	MUNIS 953 June 2012 Board Copy.xlsx
	Investment Report.pdf

	Consider approval of budget amendment requests
	July 12 Budget Amendments.doc

	Budget Update
	2012 - 2013 Budget Update
	Budget Update.docx

	Consider approval of date for public meeting to discuss budget and proposed tax rate
	Public Meeting for Budget and Tax Rate.doc

	Consider approval of proposed tax rate that will be published in the notice for the public meeting
	Proposed Tax Rate.doc


	Consider approval of general merchandise vendors
	General Merchandise.doc

	Consider approval of classroom instructional materials and supplies
	Classroom Instructional Materials and Supplies.doc

	Consider approval of proposal for portable building relocation and setup
	Portable Building Relocation and Setup (2).doc
	Copy of CSP 26-2012 Portable Building Relocation Setup.xls

	Consider approval of purchase of Technology Vehicles
	Technology Vehicles.doc
	Technology Vehicles.xls

	Consider approval of operation services for district water and sewer treatment facilities
	Operation Services for District Water and Sewer Treatment Facilities.doc
	Copy of CSP 28-2012 Operation Services for District Water Sewer Treatment Facilities Including Grease Traps.xls
	CSP 28-2012 Operation Services for District Water and Sewer Treatment Facilities Contract.pdf

	Consider approval of donations to the district, including, but not limited to:
	Donations to district.docx
	Austin Elementary School
	Dickinson Elementary School
	Smith Elementary School

	Consider approval of naming new school
	Naming of School (John M Arredondo).docx

	Consider approval of TEA Consortium Commitment
	TEA Consortium.docx

	Consider approval of Board Policies
	APPROVAL OF BOARD POLICIES.doc
	Localized Policy Manual Update 93
	Update 93.pdf

	Localized Policy Manual Update 94
	Update 94.pdf
	FFAF.pdf


	Consider approval of memorandum of understanding with William Smith Sr., Tri-County Child Development Council, Inc. and Fort Bend County
	MOU Seguin Head Start PROOFED 070312.docx
	LCISD Head Start Playground Equipment Agr.doc

	Consider approval of agreement for Lamar CISD worker's compensation third party administration program
	Workers' comp TPA 7-2012.doc
	Workers Comp backup.pdf

	Consider approval of the worker's compensation excess carrier for Lamar CISD
	Workers' comp excess 7-2012.doc
	Workers Comp Excess backup.pdf

	Consider approval of architect contract for the new Natatorium
	ARCHITECT CONTRACT NEW NATATORIUM.docx

	Consider approval of architect contract for the new agriculture facility
	ARCHITECT CONTRACT NEW AGRICULTURAL FACILITY.docx

	Consider approval of wastewater contract between Lamar CISD and Fort Bend County MUD #146
	WASTEWATER CONTRACT.docx
	Waste Water backup.pdf

	Consider approval of utility easement at Joe Hubenak Elementary School
	UTILITY EASEMENT AT JOE HUBENAK ELEMENTARY SCHOOL.docx
	Utility Easement.pdf



	INFORMATION ITEMS
	Goal:  Instructional
	Freezing of new Intra-District/Inter-District transfer requests to Bowie, Ray, and Travis Elementary Schools
	2012-2013 Campus Freeze.docx


	Goal: Planning
	2013 Graduation
	Graduation.docx

	Board Policies for First Reading
	Policies - First Reading.doc
	CDA.pdf
	GKD.pdf
	GKDA.pdf

	Tax Collection Report
	Tax Collections information item 063012.doc
	Tax Collections JUNE 2012.xls

	Payments for Construction Projects
	Payments for Construction Projects.docx

	Region 4 Maintenance and Operations Update
	Region_4_Monthly-June 2012.doc

	Bond Update
	Monthly Report_07-10-12 (REVISED).pdf






